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Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group
Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The business environment of the construction industry was
similar to last year. The construction market was hard-hit by
the prolonged debates in the Legislative Council during the
year which led to a large backlog in funding approval for public
works. That resulted in a substantial drop in the number of
open tenders in the market, and in turn severe competition and
suppressed contract prices.

The Group did not land any new contracts in the year
2016/2017, however, it commenced construction of three
profitable projects — the Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary
Control Point, Hospital Expansion project and Commercial/
Residential Development in Wong Tai Sin District — during the
year as scheduled. Despite the decrease in turnover and profit
during the year relative to last year, the Group maintained
a sound financial position with affluent operating cashflows
during the year and a net cash position at the end of the year.
The Group also used the proceeds from its listing to acquire
additional infrastructure facilities and equipment to strengthen
its construction capabilities.

On the cost control front, the Group reduced the number of
site workers by approximately 15% during the year after major
labour-intensive works of some construction projects were
completed. As for finance costs, the Group voluntarily repaid
some long-term loans in advance in early 2017, given its
sufficient working capital, and switched primarily to short-term
loans for flexible management and reduction of cost of interest.
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With a new Chief Executive (“CE”) of the Hong Kong SAR
elected this year, the large backlog of projects pending
approval hopefully will be processed more quickly and the
development plans discussed in the 2016/2017 Policy Address
will be implemented. However, with a certain transitional period
expected for the new CE and her team to get the hang of
governing, public works projects would not regain momentum
immediately. Hence, we expect to face a tougher environment
in the coming year. To strive for a breakeven in cashflows, we
will be very cautious in additional investment in machinery and
equipment.

In March 2017, we acquired 5% equity interests in a property
holding company at a total consideration of approximately
HK$20 million. The purpose of the acquisition is to provide
a springboard for the Group to explore new opportunities in
property investment or property development and also to work
with the substantial shareholder of the Company in exploring
the development potential of a number of land parcels in the
New Territories. The Group is likely to take on the relevant
construction projects in those development plans once they
are implemented and that will diversify the Group’s income
stream. As that investment is still in preliminary stage, there is
no funding pressure on the Group in the near term.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about
the prospects of the construction market. We are confident
that the Group, as one of the most dependable contractors
in the foundation segment who has an extensive range
of specialised machinery and equipment, an experienced
management team and decades of valuable project experience,
will be securing more projects and participating instrumentally
in landmark projects in the coming years.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect AANZEIBeHEEEKE EEHE

for and appreciation to my fellow Board members, BT #HER 288 EMERS
the management team, all staff members, suppliers, EBH  UERREBENEHMOKRENE
subcontractors, other business partners and, most importantly, PR EHRARTLHE -

our shareholders and customers for their support.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their unwavering ARBERRHREN Y  EEeEFR
support, the Board recommends payment of a final dividend of EREAM B B0 -
HK1.0 cent per share.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming E

Chairman BRA KL
Hong Kong BAE

23 June 2017 201746 A23H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board is pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Year”/“2017"),
together with comparative figures for the previous year ended
31 March 2016 (the “Previous Year”/“2016”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Group Revenue and Profit

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$818 million,
representing a decrease of 23% as compared with the Previous
Year (2016: HK$1,061 million). As discussed in the last Annual
Report and Interim Report of the Company, the number of
tenders available during the Year was limited largely due to the
backlog in funding approval of public works and infrastructure
projects as a result of filibusters in the Legislative Council
in Hong Kong. With the Composite Development Project in
Macau completed in the Previous Year, the Group continued
during the Year to work on the three projects in Hong Kong,
namely the Proposed Commercial/Residential Development
in Wong Tai Sin District, Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary
Control Point and Hospital Expansion projects. The Group’s
revenue for the Year declined as there was no new contract
obtained other than the above.

The gross profit and gross margin of the Group for the Year
was HK$145 million and 18% respectively (2016: HK$210
million and 20% respectively). As disclosed in the last Annual
Report and Interim Report of the Company, despite the
relatively large size of the Hospital Expansion project contract,
more than half of the contract value was related to non-bored
piling works, which were sub-contracted and the margin of
these works was relatively low. In addition, the gross profit
margin of the Group was squeezed by the overhead costs in
relation to equipment depreciation and labour.

The Group’s net profit for the Year was HK$79 million,
representing a decrease of 48% (2016: HK$153 million). The
decrease was mainly due to a drop in contract revenue and
profit margin as discussed above.
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B IR ((AERE ]/ T20174 ) t 2
%45 @R E2016F3A318 1F FFEES
(IEF]/T20165 ) L& HUIE -

EBOEKRREE
& E WA K 7

RAFE - A& B KU A A818,000,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED M

Major Projects during the Year AEEFEIEE
Estimated
Completion Expected remaining
status as at completion of works
31 March 2017 date value
R20174F
3H31RH mEERT
58 A AR I FAHAZE R B IESHE
(HKS)
(#7T)
(Note)
(B3E)
Proposed Commercial/Residential Around 40% Mid-2018 80 million
Development in Wong Tai Sin District
BAIEBEERIER KA 20184 8,0008
Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Almost completed Mid-2017 13 million
Control Point
g/ EEENFIEAR BT 20174 1,3008
3 | | &
Hospital Expansion Around 40% 2019 900 million
BEiTiERIER RA4RK, 20194 9fE
Note: Bt -
The above remaining of works were determined with reference to LWESBTIRSED2REMEMAERS
internal estimates based on currently available information and may be AWEMEHET - TBIR B ATBE B o

subsequently revised.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEENWED T

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai EANEEEZEEEH
Sin District

This project involving installation of lateral support works REBE2015F4 A HERS D AIR AT
was awarded in April 2015. The total contract value is TREMEY  6RBELNIUEET (B
about HK$320 million (including contingent payment and/or RAFRER,/ REELE)  aRBRITE
provisional sum), with the first phase valued at an estimated EMARIAEBT HO E—HFRR
HK$140 million. As mentioned in the last Annual Report and FRHRR AT AN TBEE ERBRIESS
Interim Report, certain technical complications in the first ETHEMERRA  FHoIREAEHRTK
phase of the project had commanded part of the works to BEFREE AU AFERETLES
be re-designed and re-scheduled. As a result, only a minimal #HTFE -

amount of contract works was carried out during the Year.

As at 31 March 2017, around 40% of the first phase of B E201743HA31H » 1HB & B A m &
installation of lateral support works for the project was RIRREETRO4K - Eep6pkm TETE
completed. The remaining 60% of the works are expected to FTHN2018F A FERK o

be completed by mid-2018.

Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point =g S EEEOFEH

The Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point is part EE/FEEDFBEEBRLIAIREE

of the Hong Kong boundary crossing facilities managed by the EEMBSOFRIREMN—I9 KEEE 9
Civil Engineering and Development Department. The Group 01 FRHERKENREARBIVA

signed a pre-bid agreement in relation to the bored piling B EY B TIERNE ‘@ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%% ° &I;IEE
subcontractor works with the main contractor at the time of the BRIE2015F6 AR E Z @A Bk

tender in 2013. Funding of the project was finally approved by WERHBEEIREEE -

the Legislative Council in June 2015 and the relevant contracts

were subsequently awarded.

As mentioned in the last Annual Report and Interim Report, B E— 1 FER AP EARERTM - THE W
subsequent changes were made to the design plans of the LA BERA AN EEERE BT EE
project after the Group had started work on the construction & B o IRIBF2016FVIFTBMRET + RIGET
sites. Based on the design available in early 2016, the original TREBANRLITERBIT - AFE - BIE
estimated value of the works was about HK$470 million. SHER B IESBEMEEL5.68
During the Year, based on the latest available information, the BILAER -

estimated value of the works is increased to about HK$560
million.

As at 31 March 2017, the works for the project were almost HE201743A318 » WIHERB ITREN
completed and generated revenue amounting to around 48% BX - WG AR BARFE AU AL48% o 1R
of the Group’s total revenue for the Year. According to the BeFHNITEE - FBertbEE 82 T/
latest works programme, the remaining small portion of the DB R2017F R ERTHK °

project is expected to be completed around mid-2017.

=MEEEERRLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Hospital Expansion

In July 2015, the Group was awarded the main contract for
foundation and associated works of United Christian Hospital
by the Hospital Authority. The contract is valued at HK$1,780
million, and after deducting all contingent and/or provisional
sums, the actual revenue is estimated at approximately
HK$1,400 million.

More than half of the project value is for demolition of existing
buildings, site formation and road reconstruction to prepare for
expansion of the hospital. Construction of the foundation piles
accounts for the remaining contract value.

This project contributed revenue amounting to about 49% of
the Group’s total revenue during the Year. The works carried
out during the Year included primarily demolition of existing
buildings and bore piling works for new buildings.

As at 31 March 2017, around 40% of the project was
completed and the entire Hospital Expansion project will last
around four years till 2019.

Business Outlook and Recent Development

As discussed in the last Annual Report and Interim Report, as
a result of the delays in funding approval of public works and
infrastructure projects because of filibusters in the Legislative
Council, there was fierce price competition for tenders in the
construction market during the Year. Furthermore, the tenders
available for the Group to bid were limited. To cope with the
less than desirable circumstance, the Group has scaled down
its workforce and overhead costs heeding the size and stage
of ongoing projects. The management is mindful of market
conditions and is prepared for the low season to prevail for the
ensuing year before the construction market warms up again at
the clearing of the public projects backlog.

B EZERA

AEBHA2015F7TAESBREERE T
BAEBRMETRRERABRISHESL -
REHEBEI7.8EB T - MAEMBRIA
%/ SEEHIEBE  BERERAMTOR14

BHET -

HIEBREEFAEB—FRFDRARE
£y ETHRFELERMEIFERE
EREGTE MESKSEEMEBEE
e
HHEBBAEAEERANEREBZKRALD
49% - RAFEMETH TR T ELHE
REEFRHETELBIRE -

HE2017F3H318  BE O E1TAXN4
R T2 BEERBEEER & AEHLO4
FHE2019%F o

EBRESAHER

B E— D FRRTPHRER W L
FENHTEYAHEMRERIERAL
BALL  NFEEREXRNTREBRF
o s AREAHEEMNBAREEAR - 5
FERTIA L K& - REBAGRATF REEE
X MBEETHRENREREE - &
BEETYEIETSER  SFEEENQH
TiRRBE &Y EXATRBELRRZ
Al - TRME S ARK —FHIKT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Currently, the Group is maintaining a healthy financial position,
and has sufficient reserves of foundation machinery and
equipment as well as a pool of professional management
personnel and skilful labour to meet the requirement of
projects in the tender pipeline. With the government keen in
the roll out of the Hong Kong 2030+ Development Strategy,
the management believes the demand for housing and
infrastructure will continue to be strong, adding to the large
number of projects to be tabled in the Legislative Council and
the various development plans covered in the 2016 and 2017
Policy Address.

Investment in property holding companies

On 29 March 2017, the Group signed a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 5% of the entire issued share capital
of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited (“Gold Champion”) for
a cash consideration of HK$19,750,000, subsequent to the
announcement on 20 October 2016 regarding a memorandum
of understanding signed between the two companies about
exploring potential co-operation for land development on
certain pieces of land in Hong Kong held by Gold Champion.
The sale and purchase agreement was completed on 31 March
2017.

Gold Champion owns two residential land parcels in Yuen Long
and one industrial land parcel in Fanling. The total gross floor
area of the Residential Lands is about 14,270 square metres
and that of the Industrial Land is about 1,860 square metres.
The aggregate market value of the three land parcels as at 20
March 2017 was HK$432,000,000, according to a valuation
report issued by an independent valuer.

Bringing to the partnership its wealth of expertise, skills and
experience in construction, the Group expects the co-operation
with Gold Champion to open business opportunities for it and
drive the development of its business.

BEEWED T

AAT AEERFBEOMBRR LRy
BRAHBERERRARER AR LS
BB BB R E B T AT 815 A

8B B E K - BTEMSR#ETTE E2030+%
RER  EAE/MMAEIER - ML
20164 F120174F i B 3R &5 i 2= /) & 18 3%
RErEIMER - BEEHREZ EEME
BRERFEARDY -

RYRER L G RE

#2016F 10208 Bt M A & A) %% 5T 5%
fi% 1 = 8% LA B #1 A B8 BGold Champion
Enterprises Limited ([ Gold Champion])
REBFENE TN EBEESERS
% REBRK2017F3A29H %5 BE & #
% AR BEGold Champion® ¥ 2 317 A%
5% IR & K {8 519,750,000/8 7T - B
E#E D N2017F3A31H =K °

Gold Championi? 7t BA # & ™M 18 £ =
MR EES —IBIERM - ZM
BEEAMBREEmMEL14,270F 7
oK T L2 AR b AR R SR E B 491,860 F 77
Ko BEBEBUGEMBELENGEERS
R20174E3A208 @ ZIE LM ETES
432,000,000/ 7T °

F#Z EHGold ChampionZ s BHBE @ &
ERBXERETREENZTENE &
T 488 TEERLMEIERERESZR
o WHBAEEEBER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Despite the decrease in revenue and profit, as discussed
above, the Group’s financial position remained healthy for the
Year. The current ratio was 1.4 times (2016: 1.7 times) and the
total cash and bank balance was approximately HK$369 million
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$221 million). The Group had
a net cash position as at 31 March 2017 (2016: net gearing
of 13%). The Group also maintained a stable dividend payout
ratio at about 32% for the Year (2016: 33%).

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 22% from approximately
HK$37 million to approximately HK$45 million for the Year.
In the Previous Year, however, administrative expenses were
partly offset by the recovery and write back of costs and
provision after certain litigations were concluded. If legal and
professional fees in both years were excluded, administrative
expenses for the Year would have been remained stable.

Finance Cost
Finance cost for the Year was approximately HK$10.3 million,

representing a decrease of approximately 12% compared to
approximately HK$11.7 million in the Previous Year.

Y |

-

Pt EI R R o A7

BB TR s A R F B BT R
RAFE  REBM B R EFEBR
20173 A31H » BN RAEFF I .45
MBENKFE (20164 : 1.7%) - IR& KIRTT
4 R B H) 2369,000,000/8 7T (20164
221,000,000%% JT) ° 2 & B K201743 A
S1ABFREKT (2016F : FEER
B EB13%) « RAFE - REBTER
BEMRBEE - #32% (20164 : 33%) °

TR

MARFEE - 175 2 B 4937,000,000/% 7T
3 I122% = #945,000,00078 7T © AT+ &
FHOTBALBSEE THRLERFAIE
R BB AR R B T A K AE o {1 AR R (&
FEMEEREXER THRAX—E#

MER

REF W E 410,300,000/ 7T © 8
EFE 411,700,000 7T A £912% o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERE WD

Taxation 18

The effective tax rate of the income tax expense for the Year REFH BB EL513% (20161
was 13% (2016: 8%). Unlike the Previous Year, about 99% F:8%) c BRINESF - NFE4I99%H)
of the construction revenue for the Year was generated from ITREARESAEL @ BREZRTEF
Hong Kong projects, with the assessable profit subject to a REBFEHE16.5%HB - KFRIEH
16.5% tax rate in Hong Kong. The lower effective tax rate in B EEE B R()460%/ TEKAIR

the Previous Year was resulted mainly because (i) about 60% of BRI —IEXEIER @ BPNEER RE
the construction revenue was generated from a major project in FER  RiEBHB R HE SRR

Macau and the statutory tax rate there was lower than in Hong HERPSIE B AR E M E WA ARl
Kong; and (ii) there was rental income earned by subsidiaries in = AT B BN L RPARIIE o
Hong Kong in relation to leasing of machinery and equipment

for use in Macau projects, which was regarded as offshore

income and therefore not subjected to taxation in Hong Kong

and Macau.

Profit and Net Profit Margin Stk Kl K2 0% ) A &

As a result, the Group’s profit after tax was approximately - AN & BB EuE NG A
HK$79 million (2016: HK$153 million), representing a 79,000,000/ 7T (20164 : 153,000,000

year-on-year decrease of approximately 48%. Net profit margin BIL) HERERDK48% - FHBEE A
was 10% (2016: 14%). 10% (2016%F : 14%) ° 13
Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments BARF RE AR

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by KEE-—REBRNIBER  RERTER
internal resources, long-term bank loans and finance leases. FREHERNEEARARY - KAAIJE
The Company also secured additional financial resources 2014F FMESBEINYEER - K EE
from its listing in 2014. During the Year, the Group invested H®EEBRBEFTER  AKERTFER
approximately HK$53 million in machinery and equipment. As & #153,000,0007%8 JT i B W LR E o R
at 31 March 2017, the Group’s capital commitments relating 201743A31H '+ A&EE B B HE EHH &
to purchase of machinery and equipment was nil (2016: HK$4 RENERAES L ABZEE T (20164 ¢
million). 4,000,000 7T) ©

During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not RAFEE  BRULIFEI  NEBE W EEAM
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets. FRHEREEEERNE -

——

=MEEEERRLT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group generated from
operating activities a net cash inflow of approximately HK$295
million, which was more than that in the Previous Year (2016:
HK$190 million). That was mainly because the about HK$204
million trade receivables outstanding at 31 March 2016 were
collected during the Year. Together with short-term bank loans
and overdraft facilities available, the Group’s daily operations
had been financially sound throughout the Year.

Use of Proceeds

All of the remaining net proceeds from the IPO in the amount
of HK$52 million as at 31 March 2016 was applied in acquiring
machinery and equipment during the Year in accordance with
intended uses. Thus, as at 31 March 2017, the Company had
no remaining net proceeds from its IPO.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$369 million (2016: HK$221
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
patacas. The increase in cash and bank balances was mainly
due to the net cash generated from operating activities during
the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$252 million (2016: HK$288 million)
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or Euros. Borrowings
generally include short-term and long-term bank loans, finance
leases and overdrafts bearing floating interest rates. Of the
total borrowings, approximately HK$137 million (2016: HK$36
million) were short-term bank loans and bank overdrafts and
approximately HK$62 million (2016: HK$118 million) was
the current portion of long-term bank loans and obligations
under finance lease with maturity dates within 12 months.
This analysis excludes those long-term borrowings with an
immediate demand clause that were classified under current
liabilities.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a net cash position
(2016: net gearing of 13%) (net borrowings divided by total
equity). The Group’s net cash position was mainly attributable
to the profits from operations and the reduction in capital
expenditure on machinery and equipment. For the purpose
of calculating the Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings
refer to the total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and restricted bank balances
pledged as security for credit facilities of the Group.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$169 million (2016: HK$232 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.4 times (2016: 1.7 times). The Group’s total equity as at 31
March 2017 was approximately HK$696 million (2016: HK$655
million).
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars and Macau patacas. The Group’s revenue, expenses,
cash and bank balances, borrowings, other monetary assets
and liabilities are also principally denominated in those two
currencies. Other than the purchase orders for machinery
and equipment paid in Euros and Singapore dollars and such
short-term Euros borrowings for settlement, the Group was not
exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had not
employed any financial instrument for hedging.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$18 million and
HK$17 million, respectively (2016: same), the Group did not
have any material contingent liabilities. The performance bonds
are expected to be released in accordance with the terms of
the respective construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2017, the net book amount of plant and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long-term
bank loans was approximately HK$124 million (2016: HK$210
million) and approximately HK$123 million (2016: HK$139
million), respectively. None of the banking facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2016: none).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the vyear,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had approximately 210
(2016: 250) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

This report covers the operating unit, situated in Hong Kong,
of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (“the Group”) as of
31 March 2017. The reporting period is the 2016/17 financial
year (1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017), which is consistent with
the annual report reporting period of the Group.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. This is the Group’s first Environmental,
Social and Governance report to follow the guide, and has
made general disclosures in accordance with the “Comply or
Explain” requirements set out in the guide.

STAKEHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Group has set up a wide range of channels to
communicate with investors so that they are able to fully grasp
the latest developments of the Group. Such channels include
result announcements, annual and interim reports, meetings,
the Group publications and website. In addition, the Group
maintains close contact with customers and contractors
through meetings, telephone conferences and e-mails. More
information can also be found through publications about the
Group.

A ENVIRONMENT

A1 Emissions

The Group focuses on the control of emissions from
construction work and has strictly complied with the
relevant environmental laws to reduce environmental
pollution. Furthermore, the Group has certified the
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System which
recognizes the control measures and management the
Group has taken towards the environmental issues
concerned within the Group’s scope of business. The
sewage produced from construction that needs to
be discharged would first be treated at the sewage
treatment tank, to ensure it meets the requirements of
the sewage discharge license, and would subsequently
be discharged through sewage drains. Waste generated
from construction would be transported to the landfill for
disposal. Moreover, watering and other such measures
would be used at the construction site to reduce pollution
created from construction dust. All machineries used
at the construction site meet the requirements from the
Environmental Protection Department (EPD). To improve
air quality and in response to the EPD’s measures,
the Group has been actively replacing Euro Il Diesel
Engines used for construction vehicles in order to reduce
emissions of respirable suspended particulates and
nitrogen oxide.

WEEE

REERERE=-"NEEEEER A
A (T AEE) & 1-2017F3A318 1k
FEMUREESNEEY  RENEBRA
2016/17F M B &F & (2016F 418 =
20174%38A31R)  BEAKEBE M FERB S
B —3 o

ABERBE(BERBBEXIMERAARE
F ERAD k27 GRIE - HERES
SHDRE - BT ENKEZESR
BRE e RERRSE - LWIKIESIF
[(TETHEE N2 REL —RIE -

BENEERE
AEERIZBEAKEERBNRE
BREREERADEEAKREN R
B HRERmExasmh  FHREPHRK
T 8@ AFRTORARREY - AEE
MEEREPRAHNENGS  EEQ
o BEBFNAREEZBE - MR
BRE2HARARENTIMEREZNE
e

A EIE

Al HERY)
AEBBMOREHERETRENE
B Y BRI ESTRBE N RER
ERUR D EIRIBRS L - B
AREBEDERFISO 14001 EEH
BEARBUARTAEBELHEER
3R 55 RS R P B LAY 4 4 55 5 &
B WRNEEBERELEMNSK
MEBHW > @ELBSKEEN
B TR DA B AR 5 A& 55 7K HE R BR MO M5
. BESKEEM - MEEESE
NEYDETEGEDNHEBERFEERES -
AN - Tt B ER B K FE 18 1 DA
RO TIRERTIEKMNISR - FTA
ETHFERIMNEMEESFTEER
RENBEE ARNEER[EETE
JERRENEE  AEEEEGRE
R B B L8 S T A2 B R DA D BRI
AR A Z R FMB R -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

e L,,E,L - ...-‘:..m -



—E-tFFER

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

To reduce carbon emissions, during the selection of
suppliers and contractors, the Group would give priority
to local contractors unless they are not able to meet
our specified requirements. In addition, we would use
telephone conference and e-mails to replace business
travels as much as possible.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant
environmental laws, and there have been no cases of
prosecution due to violation of the relevant environmental
laws during this period.

A2 Use of Resources

Reusing resources and reducing waste are the Group’s
principles for effective use of resources. Lighting and
air-conditioning systems in the office have zoning control.
The Group also actively encouraged double-sided printing
and copying to reduce as much waste as possible.
To promote environmental protection, the Group also
provided a material sorting and recycling area, and has
set objectives to effectively implement waste reduction
and reuse. Furthermore, within the office area we would
encourage employees to use less water and paper
through the bulletin board.

In addition to the office, construction sites have also
implemented measures to increase the efficiency of
resources use. The Group would procure materials based
on the actual needs of the project and would record the
quantity used for monitoring to prevent wastage due
to lack of management. After completion of a project,
tools and equipment that are in good condition would be
transported back to the warehouse to be used for other
projects. Furthermore, the Group has set up a machinery
repair and maintenance team that carries out regular
inspections and maintenance in order to increase energy
efficiency and slow down the damage and prolong the
working life of the machineries.
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A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

To minimize the impact and damage that construction
works have on the environment, sewage produced during
the construction process would be treated through
a sewage treatment tank, then transported back to
the construction site for watering to reduce the dust
and for equipment cleaning. This method has reduced
the use of water and helped controlling pollution.
Regarding machinery and equipment, the Group has
fully utilised energy efficient diesel fuel to greatly reduce
fuel consumption. When there is a need in purchasing
large machinery, the Group would consider models that
are energy efficient and low in emissions to support
environmental protection.

In addition, to treasure the earth’s resources, the Group
has encouraged employees to use electronic files in
place of paper to reduce paper usage and has promoted
the use of recycled paper. Toner cartridges would be
collected by the supplier to minimize the production of
hazardous waste.
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B SOCIETY B #&
B1 Employment B1 BB -
The Group’s employment policy follows the principle of AEENEBERENTIEHRE AR
equal opportunity, aiming to hire applicants that meet the B - EBEEERESRBERESH
requirements and without discrimination, regardless of THRERME-RE  EREKR B
ethnicity, colour, religion, sex, nationality, age or physical B RmHy- MR BHE FRIT
conditions. The Group would consider staff promotions AR e MESE L&A E -
solely based on personal expertise, professional skills AEEReEREAARR  FF
and experience. Furthermore, we would make salary ReEM&BasEERE - N &
adjustments based on staff performance and the market el BEIRBEMTHBKEEAS
level. T 38 B 1) B o
The Group has provided various staff welfare benefits, AEBLAETRESEEMNEE
and would also regularly host events and gatherings VTeTHEpEaFe HBE
to help reducing stress of employees. Typically, the THE - —fRHE ~THARESE
appropriate retirement age is 65, however, the Group BHERKFR B2 AEEE
would consider an extension based on the situation of the AEEHEBLNEERBERAARE
relevant position and health conditions and willingness HEINERMERBLMSEEIL
of the employee. Moreover, if an employee has suffered %oty B TEEBTEEHRET
from an injury or died as the result of an accident at work, ENTENE  XEBEZHRYE T X
the Group would pay a reasonable compensation to the PIHETIRERBIELAEEE-
employee and his family in accordance with the labour AREBRFERFATRBEEIBET 23
law. The Group’s policy is strongly against overtime B mMBEIETAEEL ETHEBER
work for employees. Prescribed overtime pay and BFEZ iR o

compensatory leave would be given for overtime work.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant AEE-—EBRRETHBANERZE
employment laws, and there have been no cases of 7 Hﬁmxﬁlﬁi&ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ ]
prosecution due to violation of the relevant employment JEGI TR i A = -

laws during this period.

’*valr_“

=MEESEERAD R
( v ; M ¥ ' =55 w‘-"
¥ o e TR

Sema o

T

et
. .
F—— —



ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Corporate Social Responsibility Report
TtEHEEEIRSE

24

B2 Health and Safety

In the construction industry, safety is most worthy of
attention. The Group has always regarded safety as
an integral part of each process, therefore the Group
has implemented the OHSAS 18001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management Systems which was
being certified. The Group has conducted analysis on
operational and field work to determine any potential
dangers or risks related to health and safety and
identifying their risk level. For high risk jobs, the Group
would conduct risk evaluations to implement different
levels of control measures. Objectives have been set for
the processes with significant risks in order to have a
better management. The Group has also carried out a
safety inspection scheme whereby an appointed person
would be delegated to perform regular safety inspections
to ensure construction staff are obeying the safety rules
at all times. For high risk jobs, management staff would
determine the appropriate personal protective equipment
for the employees to ensure their safety.

The Group places the same level of importance on
employees’ safety training; all employees who worked
at the construction site must first go through a safety
induction training session whereby the responsible safety
supervisor would provide relevant training, including
briefing on safety related laws, operational safety
guidelines, potential dangers on site and emergency
responses to enhance their operational safety awareness.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant safety
laws, and there have been no cases of prosecution due
to violation of the relevant occupational safety laws during
this period.

B2 @R 2

HESEERS ZESHINKE
Z2  AEEE—ERLXEAEHE
IFWMEERHG Bt A58 E
M T OHSAS 18001B% ¥ @ B M %2
FEBRRBRUESRE - AKEEH
HESMIRG TIEEL 2T - AR
EEMEARREENZ /BRI
AR B e R B - g8 I L R B AR A
I ¥ = B B /) TR i R B R A
LA Il 78 1 [F] 12 2 /9 158 Il 56 5 o 308
MERRBHIRGEBBGER
ZAERERENEERR - K
EERBTHTZERETE &
KIEEABEH#ETLZ2KERS
BRARBEABRZETLE -
mitH SRR IIE EEABEGE
EeEmNEANZEEES S IR
BEMMmzs -

AEENRABKERHBETINRZRE
- FAEEATHIENABET
RERXZ 25| B8BIIRE AR
ZEHHENTESRHEABIRE
RENBRZZAED 2281
Bl IHEEEREESEES
NP e 2R EEE -

AEEBEBETHEANTZE
HAREBRASER BBEXL2HE
AP RIE R E R -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

e L,,E,L - ...-‘:..m -



—E-tFFER

Corporate Social Responsibility Report
TtEHEEERE

B3 Development and Training

In order to provide professional construction engineering
services to our clients, the engineering knowledge and
skill of our staffs are vital. The Group has sponsored and
provided opportunities for employees to participate in
various trainings to enhance their knowledge and skill,
for example providing mechanical operations training
for technician trainees and sponsoring their license
examinations. Furthermore, the Group would nominate a
number of employees to attend operations trainings for
new machine models provided by the manufacturers, and
would also organize visits to exhibitions to learn about the
latest mechanical developments. We hope that through
such programs, employees would be able to gain more
comprehensive knowledge on mechanical operations
and grasp new skills faster to help driving the Group’s
development.

In daily operations, the Group would arrange for team
leaders to provide on-the-job training and experienced
staff would give work guidance for junior level employees.
In addition, managerial staff would attend seminars on
construction industry management or new developments,
organised by industry or professional organisations to
enhance their knowledge in management and broaden
their horizons. If a department deems necessary,
employees may be allocated to other positions to acquire
knowledge and experience from different fields.

B4 Labour Standards

The Group respects the rights and interests of each
employee, and in accordance to the workplace policy,
we have prohibited the recruitment of any persons under
the age of 18. With regards to the prevention of forced
labour, the Group prohibits the execution of forced labour
in all units. The policy prescribes that no employee shall
be forced to work against his own will or be subject to
any work-related corporal punishment or coercion. The
Group has also committed not to force employees to
work overtime.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant labour
laws. There have been no cases of child labour, forced
labour or prosecution due to violation of the relevant laws
during this period.
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B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group hopes that through various measures, the
supply chain’s management in environmental and social
areas would improve. The engagement criteria for the
selection of suppliers and contractors are based on their
past performances, labour rights, records from health
and safety issues and environmental issues, financial
situation, business ethics and other areas. The Group
would also evaluate and update the approved list of
contractors on a regular basis. The evaluation criteria
include compliance on the environmental and social
standards. To control and ensure the quality and speed
of work of the contractors, the project management team
would continuously monitor the skill and labour safety
performance of the contractors, recording the relevant
inspection results for follow up work.

The Group has established a Code of Practice that
contractors are required to comply with, which covers
items such as environmental protection, anti-child labour,
payment of salary in accordance with employment
rights, and occupational safety. There have been
safety managers on site to supervise to ensure the
Code of Practice is in effect. The Group greatly values
labour rights; related policies have prohibited the use
of contractors that have engaged in the use of child
labour and forced labour. Furthermore, the Group has
implemented environmental protection and occupational,
safety and health guidelines for contractors. These
include construction and engineering design, material
selection, pollution control and other good practices.
Additionally, the Group would instruct suppliers and
contractors to provide training related to the operations of
the Group’s environmental management system.

B6 Product Responsibility

The Group’s main scope of business is around foundation
engineering. The quality of the foundation directly affects
the building’s safety, therefore building a stable and
reliable foundation is the Group’s primary responsibility.
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The Group has developed testing and inspection plans NEFBHEAEBE N TNEEESIE 4
for different stages of the construction project, and in BE LBl E  BIERABA LE
accordance with the relevant provisions on the contract, EE A ABEETSEREA RN
all piles must go through various appropriate tests to FHBEREMMEERELE - ER
ensure the quality and safety of the product. Quality HMEEESARBTEREBILEE
control tests include inspection of the angle of inclination A RRLTE=SMA4E RETHE
of the bored pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, EAMEE AR —RIAEREE
the binding force between the concrete and rocks, and ERB - AEEXNEARFIRMEM
a series of incoming quality control. The Group would EBEEMAIABREUNRBBENS
also provide customers the test reports of all piles to BEE o

guarantee the stability of the pile structure.

The Group’s product services also cover quality AREBRENEGRGEEEREZEER X
assurance after completion of the project. We would, TR GERE -RMeBREHEEA
in accordance with the relevant contract terms, be HNERIKTBEEREBHRA EHE
responsible for fixing any construction defects within the TErba  REH—KATIRETITE
warranty period. Typically, the warranty period is within —F oo AN REBRBRTFHEFER
one year after the completion of the project. In addition, SIS AANRRBRIER  RERE
the Group stands by the confidentiality clause in the FTiR M al E X 15 8 2 Z 1R
signed contract with the customers, ensuring that the =)

information and documents provided by the customers
would be properly stored.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant product AREBRBETHEANERS T 27
responsibility laws, and there have been no cases of Bl - HHARBEEAERBREREF
prosecution due to violation of the relevant product S ALEAEREMI MBI ER -

responsibility or confidentiality laws during this period.

B7 Anti-corruption B7 R&E)S

Integrity and justice are the core values of the Group, AEBEUHE AEAZLEE
hence we prohibit all acts of corruption and bribery. B WERILMAEESMERITR -
The Group has established a clear Code of Conduct AEBEFY THENITTASA R
whereby all directors and staff are forbidden to offer or EAEEERETHRREARER
receive any bribery when dealing with company-related RASREIBEIETHER - B
businesses. In order to prevent any conflict of interests, IFERNzZEEE BT ELBIBER
employees should first make a statement to the board REMESSIELER - KNEB R
of directors through reporting channels. The Group has RrgR Y T2 |EIE - WHIE T 48
also established a reporting system, and has developed B8 B 2R LA B Ui fe A 2B ES 15 A0 &
relevant policies to effectively implement internal mEIBE MR BB LIRHETEHH
monitoring and risk management. The policies provide el RRE  NEPHRSEIHK
reporting guidelines and channels for employees, and FFCBEETNETAENEG -

helps increasing employees’ alertness towards fraud,
corruption and other misconduct.
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A fair, open and rigorous procurement and tender
process is the main element in maintaining a company’s
integrity. During the procurement of materials, the Group
would review quotations from multiple suppliers in order
to make a fair decision. All contracts for material suppliers
and contractors should be approved by the directors
to ensure that the outsourcing procedures are strictly
supervised.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant
anti-corruption laws, and there have been no cases of
prosecution due to violation of the relevant laws during
this period.

B8 Community Investment

The Group has always been actively contributing to
society and participating in various kinds of community
events. During the year, we have participated in various
volunteer events, including visits to low income families
organised by community service organisations. Gifts were
given to those families to show our care and attention to
them. Furthermore, we have assisted cultural promotion
organisations in hosting children’s Cantonese opera
competitions and made donations, not only to promote
culture and art, but also to contribute to the development
of children. The Group’s charitable donations has also
benefited the elderly as the donations has gone to
non-profit community service organisations to facilitate
the hosting of welfare events for the elderly in support of
the spirit of respect for them.

The youth of today are the forces behind the future
development of our society. In light of this, the Group has
tremendously supported work experience week hosted
by schools, as students were then given the opportunity
to understand the working environment in our society and
to meet people of different status, hence broadening their
knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2017.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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THE BOARD EEE

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance BEeNTERTARELRREABRRERS
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the BE - ZEXCAEEBEAEENEIE - ¥
management, business, strategies and financial performance % RBEEMERIR B/ EERREETF
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance MEEERBERERGUREAKBAE
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In Mo ERITREMNBRES ZEFEH - =
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good B R EE - RIAARRD R RER R FEF
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests HTE - -EEEBERAEENHEZE
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is PR ITREE R EEEMREIE N NP eI R
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily F5o

operations and implementation of the risk management and

internal control systems.

In

7+

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies EEelNAELEAKRE  EBRERK
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and RSN AERFIOEFI2H[EE RS
Senior Management” section on pages 40 to 42 in this annual BRERERE|—F AAREFERITH
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of MR H Rl BB BIIR AR 5 4 K BIHR Y 5 A4
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and BI FrFaseREEsemTRARE
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation EEEANEREBRNEEEIERE - AER
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage BECZHNST - BEFEAARRRERHE

30 the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to MR RE N KB « Y IEHITEEZTBEUAN
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management. EEMNERE -  RELEREEEL B H
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to ETSiEAERE EEE RO REINFEEH

the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve R RMEASREHEET -
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the

development, performance and risk management of the Group.

The directors have been made fully aware of their collective

and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts HITEZEHEARRTURBELN  ME
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive BANTESEEEE=FEEEH -
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years. BREZENIBEEE  EARFRHABER
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles HAEE  BREZTEELE=F—XR
of association of the Company provides that every director RERBFAE FRT  MPEREKREAEFAK
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at L =H 7 HETEEBREREL
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting, EERESREEIZEET -

one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Board meetings

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31
March 2017, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2017, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company held a
training for regulatory and compliance update for all directors
during the year and intended to arrange another training for
them to refresh their knowledge in the forthcoming year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made
up of three independent non-executive directors including Mr.
Ip Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2017, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2016.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
29(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS EREERAIPERE

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk EECEEABTONEREIE NANILEE

management and internal control systems to safeguard THIEAREREIRERANEREE - I
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and FREREESTERTEKY - B&E
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit BEeenEETERTMNEASTERREDY
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any ik o

material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which RAREF—HEEFM - sTHERKA -
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and REMFAY GFERANEREEEIAE

procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to BERAM P EANEEEIRIESI MR
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human MREFEEBEES @108 - UABRE IRt r]
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are SEYEME - EWEE WK AR IAARE
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided, MEFBTEREEREEAN  WRESE
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved, EoZERFMERRARIZERFM 7N
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and ¥AE T NEEETEE | IRERE - A
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures, BRatfh R FEEIRERES EAZESIR
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also B BAEERIERKE ZEFBEIEE

shaped the control environment at which and how the Group R IEHER BEARRFEHNEIE (B
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment FEBYE) (R B RARRE -
34 decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit RATWER B NBEFZELM - A
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate m EESLCEMmITENEm A%
measures to perform the internal audit function at different BARAFEEITAISZZEEE  5@EBR
aspects of the Group which are discussed below. FIERAATE o

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to AAREZE—FABEZEMYAEEH
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal RAFE ZRRERE RN RS HET
control system of the Group for the year and reported their FEEN TREBEREESeRERSE A
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the EERELMMEER - AASANENER
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s SAREBEBEAANIPEELE 7 HK - EMRE
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key FERNE IR S T R EREE
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and B -MAREERN > BERMAY HENKHE
are functioning as intended. During the year, purchase and #) B B TE Y B EREE - WEIRFT

expenditure, lease and tenancy and information technology BiEHIHE D BRI -
cycles were reviewed and found that adequate controls are in
place.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply EPNMETRRER  NEBEETHEBAR 4
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in ERBBTHBTUNEZTLINEER
order to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist AECEILEESEEMARESM (B
List (Group Il) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), )  EEZEefEAZEEMH (KA
the Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large BrBEIRER —SBAUKEFEME
diameter bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings PR — MR - AEBETIEEISO
Department Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation 9001 ~ ISO 14001 + ISO 50001 & OHSAS
Category. The Group has also implemented a management 18001 ERATEIE RS » UERAE

system in accordance with the requirements under 1SO EREFEVENEERTE  EE2RIR
9001, ISO 14001, ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 to ensure BET - RAFEARN - AEBRIBINIBER
that the Group’s services meet the requisite health and BT WEEZSHEE - B

safety, quality and environmental requirements. During the HEEIRE  KEBBZTINTERIE
year, the Group passed the audits conducted by external BHBSANEEHMEBREETSER

consultants and renewed these certificates. Upon completion A TRRZEFTERPENK %%
of pile construction, the Group is required to engage external B ERZRPAHLEE  MAERP
professionals to conduct various applicable tests on all piles BEAMNEREA T @FERERNERMNNRK
based on the relevant contractual requirements and ensure FEFERAD TR IRENEER - At &
full compliance with customer requirements. Subject to these B EREH RERRGKLDEBAMET
piling records available to the customers for their testing and BEBHATEEES -

inspection, the authorised persons employed by the customers

certify the value of the works completed in the payment

certificates issued to the Group. Therefore, stringent on-going 35
controls and monitoring systems have already been embedded

in the daily operations of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior WTESEAYSHaREEERTE
management to review and monitor the business and financial Z UEMMERER LB RIBELTE
performance against the targets, the progress of certification HEENEE  BRPEREEREGHHN
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency EE  AEBEERMNERMNREHEERES
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the b UREEFTEMNER  AEERETEH
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has REBEKEEATENEETHTE - 88
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the EERERETEEEENBBEMSE - #®
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication MSEARE - B 2ERERERSK
and accountability of the directors and management so that BERBAANG AN RS WLUEE S
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance risks NEE MEAFZHIAREEZSER - AN
or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt with in NENAEES (BREBIUFERNITES)
a proper manner, while significant issues are reported back RBRFARE  UWEFAEERTTBR
to the Board for their attention. The Company also compiles B R RAIS

monthly reports to the Board (including independent non-

executive directors) to update the latest financial performance,

position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 23 June 2017, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2017
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.5 million (2016: HK$1.6 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$1.2 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 59 to 69 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 44 of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2017.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REEBR

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely AARRONBREEERBERTS AR
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders MEHEERARAER - RMEZL TR
and the market. We have established a shareholders’ RBBECR - wAMRRRTISEER
communication policy which emphasises the importance of WEZMN - UEERGMIREGEEMFEER
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to NEBHAEERER S B8NV BERRAD
ensure they have the available information reasonably required MIFFFE - AABZBRRBAFRG R EA

to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy, ERAG ARG EREEBERZETE
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’ FE - EREZE o I - AR E AU
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company (www.samwoo-group.com) A £ E &
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with NEBER FREE -

its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

During the year, the Company held a few investor luncheons RAFEERN RAGSRPEETIREESF
and meetings for them to understand more on the business, ZeheZ MAHAEERER KRB
RIFHBE AR o

strategies and performance of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 74, is an executive director, the BIIRIA L. - 7458 - ARERITES - £
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of BHRAINA - RINBAEEBZRENEB AT
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible MEE A LEBEARSERERIERE
for the overall strategic planning and business development of REKIERE EBRERRBIBE -
the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation process, T fll 5T B & A A BUK © 858 A& B 19904
research and development and formulation of overall corporate HAEMWETRER - HARIRRLEE R
policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved in the FIRREENRER - REHZTHEEIA
foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother of Mr. KRBT AZ TR -

Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of Ms.

Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 65, is the chief executive officer BIIRB &£ - 6558 © NEBEITHABEFL
and an executive director. He is also a director of various TESF - RAAREEZHENEARTNE
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the FEoFRETFRMBAEER - HEEARX
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of EEMETELNERKIER M EEZE
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group. B o B1990F B2 E TIZET -
He has been involved in the foundation works business since HAERIKRBILENBIRREEN T H -
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau R ER T /N BT 2 1 B AU
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms.
40 Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 63, is an executive director. He BlIRREE  635%  ATTEF - HIHAR

is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group. SEZHMNBRARINES - FRETFER
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the MEREER  BEASERBERERE
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery EEHEEEIR - FHE1990F LR HUE

and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the TIRET o % ARIRAA L £ R JIREI & £
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of Mr. MM« 2EHEHLZTH/NRRANHZ 1+
Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of Ms. HY AR o

Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 70, is an executive director. She is REF L 7057 HITES - RIPAR
also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group. She SEZEWBRATMNES - FRE+FR
joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for the MEBEAEE - REEAKENTHRERER
administrative and human resources matters of the Group ADEBRER WL2EAEENETIER
and has been involved in the management of the Group for 214F o IEAR1997F7 ARSFEBR X KB
over 21 years. She obtained a diploma in smaller company INEIABEIRENR - K ABIRE AL AR
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in July BB 2 TR R BIRE L4 &
1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of Ms. BIRR e £ 128 -

Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr.

Lau Chun Ka.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 72, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
philosophy in mathematics from the University of Alberta in
Canada. He is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and
Chevalier dans I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of
France, and elected as a member of the European Academy of
Sciences. Currently, he is Chair Professor of Mathematics and
the Director of the Liu Bie Ju Centre for Mathematical Sciences
at City University of Hong Kong. He is also the Special
Advisor to the President at Southern University of Science and
Technology of China.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 40 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 859).

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
focuses on providing corporate finance services to listed
and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as property
investment.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224) and an independent
non-executive director of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited
(stock code: 239), each of which is a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of
Japan Residential Assets Manager Limited, the manager of a
real estate investment trust listed in Singapore, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 62, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Lee Wan Cheung, aged 56, is the Technical Director
of the foundation division. He is responsible for the design
and technical issues in the construction of foundation. He
has over 30 years of experience in the construction industry
in both private and public sectors in Hong Kong and the UK.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering from
Kingston Polytechnic in 1986. He is a registered inspector and
a registered structural engineer under the Buildings Ordinance,
a registered professional engineer under the Engineers
Registration Board, a member of the Institution of Structural
Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. Jesse, Colin John, aged 64, is an adviser to the
Board. He is responsible for advising the Board on overall
development strategies in the construction and foundation
industries. He has over 41 years of experience in the
construction industry.

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 53, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Mr. Yiu Yu Ho, Thomas, aged 67, is the Operational Director
of the foundation division. He is responsible for the managing,
supervising and actuating the current projects of the Group. He
has over 46 years of experience, working in the construction
industry, since graduated in 1971 from Civil Engineering
Department of Hong Kong Baptist College.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 43, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.
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COMPANY SECRETARY DNEAME

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 50, is the company secretary BREXEE 505 BARAIMNRAAMW
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business & FM1990F S BB HEC 2k (3R
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now EEABCAE) IFEEXER - BRAEFS
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is BHWEAD REBFWENRITRAES

a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered ANE - RBEFFLARSITMASREEE
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and FSEASEFREE - HABTBMEH LR

Administrators in the United Kingdom, the Association of AARE HEFA2IFHRAAIWEL
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the B o

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is an

accredited mediator of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He

has over 21 years company secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 70 of this annual report.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share, amounting to HK$16.8 million,
representing approximately 32% dividend ratio on an annual
basis. Such payment of dividends will be subject to the
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 7 September 2017
and are payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business
on 14 September 2017. It is expected that the proposed final
dividend will be paid on or about 6 October 2017.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
164 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS B

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the REEBNFRNEHEZENHMIBRA K

year amounted to about HK$50,000. 50,0007 T °

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES ] 2R 7 B

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2017, R2017F3A31H ' ARRIBERSHS

calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, EBE22Z A FNEY (1961F A5 = -

as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted BIR B MBI AR) st EN I H D IR HEE S

to HK$202 million (2016: HK$209 million). 202,000,0007% 7t (20164 : 209,000,000
BIT) o

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR FREBTRSG

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2017 are REZ2017F3A3TB IEFEND BT

set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. DEBERREETERENEIS -
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BEREERE

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the RABRBEBERMES EEEELEE

46 Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction B MASEE AT EHZSRE
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman lIslands, FIMEAMMR S - HEARRRBRLOIABEE
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro RERIR 2 F A ©

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE HEIBEOXAATDLTES
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had ARR K ETFNERRRE E201743
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed AB1BLFEMERE - HEXERAR
securities during the year ended 31 March 2017. AEMLEHES o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME BE PR

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant RRARIBIER2014F9 158 B BRI IR

to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed EEREER - G —TEEREE ([543
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted, Z]) - BERMNZAEREARAFRBE A
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up 1F o WEREZTEIRE « 1TERGEHEE
to the date of this annual report. I EE AR o
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an FEEMRRAIBEBTNEMEARBAHERT -
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any EIR AR R G R MG T R IR B IR
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the B 5 TR B S e BRI B A 1T {58 2 2F sk 26 9>
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted. B A AE o

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of AR N BN BE AR RE B AR B A 1.008
an option. JT

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any TEEHESESET  ERNEMBER TR
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of BIERA T EREE ()8R AT HEEER
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the REHBH(BAXSH)BHNTHRE
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day; RETRA D B U T ¢ ()8 22 P B #2 40
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily EEREZNEHAI AR BEEHNE
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading BARERMMFROFEHUTE  K(o)
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value MR HEEREZHHE/AEE -

of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after ZetE R M B B E T F A AR -
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS BE=E
48 , _ - -
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the RARFERNEAREBRIENARN T ES
date of this report were: N
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman) 2IIRAE & (£ /E)
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer) BIMR B Sk A& (7TECAE#L)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka IR e &
Ms. Leung Lai So REHL T
Independent non-executive directors BT ES
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick F 2 HE
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERKE
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold BERXB AL
In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of BB A Al A& Z 241 B 558415 - 2IIRFA

association, Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Professor Wong Sue Cheun, h - THEHRNREREGEAERER
Roderick and Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold will retire and, being fERBFARE FEER > TRHAEERERE
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming F o

annual general meeting.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 40 to 44.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
FiSREE0.0025E T HEBEREE (H8)

Name of director

EsfE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000

B E

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(o) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director ~ corporation

EEng BB AR ROEE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
SRR E 61

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
RARE 10,0008
Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REHLL 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

RBEI L 10,0008%

Number of shares

EERE

R2017F3A318 - EERA QR REE
BB (FE RBHRBEGRD([BH R
HAE 1A ]) EXVED) ;AR tn - MHEEMR G5 &
BHEPHEREZS LB BKAF352(F
BATEFENECMATSHENERRAR
SRR LT AR RIS ER10FR S A E TR TT A
BEZETBFRXHNEESTAENG AR
AR R RS RABRIAT

K

|

Zl

(@) EZERARAMES

H

Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
ERESL )

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREEANEBRA

71.43% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
2RETNREA

b) EBEFRARAMEEAEAELS

Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
HREAL &t

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

RRETOEIBA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
2REFEERARIEA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PREEANIHEA

100% Beneficiary of a discretionary
trust
PREANIHA

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2017 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in

the Company

Name of shareholder

EE4E

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust

(FREMEENZTEA)

First Names (NTC) Trustees Asia
Limited (formerly known as

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each held

Fi#s S IR {E0.00257% T HY
EBREA

Long position 1,200,000,000
%2 1,200,000,0000%

Long position 1,200,000,000

#2&1,200,000,0004%

Long position 1,200,000,000
%2 1,200,000,0000%

Long position 1,200,000,000
#%£1,200,000,000%

Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited)
(A7 FENautilus Trustees Asia
Limited)

Notes:

. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright
Holdings Limited which is indirectly owned by a
discretionary trust of which Ms. Leung Lai So is the
beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Limited is 100% held by Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust, of which issued units are 100%
held by First Names (NTC) Trustees Asia Limited (formerly
known as Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited) as trustee of a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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T (FaEAARNBEEREETHA L)Y
KD FR RARBRIR (A S AR A
HA L5 1 ) SB3061EE T 17 B 1B R A R
SR RO A

€ EERERRARAHEDSMAKR

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
ERESL 5%

71.43% Beneficial owner
ExEBA

71.43% Interest of a controlled

corporation

XEHEE MR

71.43% Trustee
A

51

71.43% Trustee

A
Hraz -

1. 1,200,000,0008% f% 9 &= Silver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
% A B A AlActiease Assets
LimitedfT #5 & + MSilver Bright
Holdings LimitedfR H % a5 A &2
BHL T REEHERS -

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited s
8 {7 5 7 &) % 5 AManagecorp
Limited 100% & M
Managecorp Limitedfy & % 17
B {7 Bl AFirst Names (NTC)
Trustees Asia Limited (5] 78
Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited)
ERBIIRMAEER UM EREET
BZFEA100%15H o
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EEESYN

No contracts concerning the management and administration RERNBEET IS FE @R AR R 2 EE
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the ERERE D EBNERERTHRAIEHNE
Company were entered into or existed during the year. %) o

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION THEZE

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company TR E M ARRRER - HEETRE
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings HH1A2014F9 A 158 M) T 5 ¢ I A AR
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition N AEEL B P FAGE o

dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the 15 N /NI A=) i 3:) O /NI 285 g
information of the companies owned by the controlling RITBEARNRINER - BYIERITESIE

shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive BHBMARAENEMTE AN AR
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that BREE2017E3 831 | F 5§ [E =R
no engagement in competing business had been reported by BABIEBFFER NN FEERTEEST

the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year EABEZEZEREBN -
ended 31 March 2017; and there was no particular situation

rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being

questionable.

52

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTEEFRHEERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in RER REBRARXEFAREAEE
aggregate accounted for approximately 100% (2016: 96%) of 48 ZEEH9100% (20164F : 96%) ° &K
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for EPhAEE RS ETEL49% (20164 -
approximately 49% (2016: 60%) of the Group’s total turnover. 60%) °

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in RERN AEBRAHEES XEAEE
aggregate accounted for approximately 90% (2016: 71%) of FEEREEREAI00% (20164F 1 71%) ° A
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted JETEME AR R E AR ERAE R 4960% (20164F ¢
for approximately 60% (2016: 26%) of the Group’s total 26%) °

purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the MEEMA BMEEE  REOBHBEAL
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to ST AR (LB BT A A AR R AR A
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the 5%AEMAT) R EMFEHERIEP
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major PR ER o

suppliers or customers.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 26 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

Tenancy Agreements

Name of landlords

EEE=¢

Term of lease agreements

5
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BEBALRS

AEBRREFTIMEABHZ SHHA

IS RAR 26 - BIEBKEEFER
BRXHNR G MAKRBERZER5E
ST EMARRIEV AR TE

REZE2017FE3A31B IEFE » REEH
SERER ST ¢

HE =

Monthly rent Annual rent

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group

HEFEYEUREREENERTFERELS
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

EEBBERAIQA

SAHES SEHES
(HK$) (HK$)
(B (B
180,000 2,160,000

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HETEYERGFENUBEESNER

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017
Development Limited

ERERERAR AR

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

RAGEARAA]

Cheer Profit International 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017
Enterprise Limited

BB EEFR A

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

RAZERARAA

Healthy World Investment Limited  1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

fZIEREBRAF]

Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2017
BZE201753A3BLEENRZHAE

Annual cap as disclosed inthe ERERZFFEBENEELR
Prospectus

For the year ending 31 March 2017 #Z2017%E3A31HILFE

73,000 876,000
3,800 45,600
3,800 45,600

50,000 600,000

50,000 600,000

4,327,200
4,327,200

=MEEEERRLT
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were AEER FAREFSIAOAE HIRAFR
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the AT WERMEENBETHERES -
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy A HEAHEEWMERINSHIREERE
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal EL - E VAR

commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons S B A TR R

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun AHRBIIREA L E - BIIRE L AE - BlIRK
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui CERRBHZT (BHEZEAEST)R
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So, Zomiz+ (BlIRBBEERREER LT
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of MEZR)PUNELETHBEE SR
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected BEA EEFEHWE AR ARINEEAT -
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred FHAENRSGIAMEK EmERE
above constituted continuing connected transactions under UAER THREBERS -

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions ERRBERERS

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have ARABRBYIENTESTCOERH LG

been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors MER S WHEIAR G @R ARNAHE
54 of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions —REBBEP )R —REEBRAKE

have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of FEEF ROBRBEREZERZNEBH

business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or ECBATYAIE BRAAKRAD ARG

better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing A 2ZZMET L o

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s RARVZHEENERE - BREBSEMA
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong & ME I E B EE R K E | 30005 [
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance SR E R E AL s T M AN EEE TR |
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical W2 EEKHAE7405: [ LR AR ER
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 BERERSNZEEMRE]  AEE
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under MFBEFBERFELRS - IRIE LTHEL]

the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified F14A.561% + ZEENE AN B R A F =R
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified FATEFASBERENFERER S © 3l

letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the HERENEZERRERNEREE
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on BRH o ZN A B B [A) B 22 BT 2 32 i BAM R {4
pages 47 to 48 in this annual report in accordance with rule B 22N o

14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related
party transactions that did not constitute connected
transactions made during the year is disclosed in note 26 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29 March 2017, Capital Plus Group Limited as purchaser,
being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Sky Ease Holdings
Limited, as vendor to acquire the sale shares (representing 5%
of entire issued share capital of the target company, namely
Gold Champion Enterprises Limited) for a cash consideration of
HK$19,750,000 (subject to adjustment).

The principal business of the target company together with its
subsidiaries is property investment, with three parcels of land in
the New Territories as its major assets and rental income as its
major income.

The vendor is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming, who is the
chairman, an executive director and substantial shareholder of
the Company. Accordingly, the abovementioned investment
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the Investment is more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the investment is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements, but is exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 March 2017.

The completion of this sale and purchase agreement
took place on 31 March 2017 with no adjustment on the
consideration. The investment is recorded as “available-for-
sale financial assets” as non-current asset of the Group in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2017.
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MARKET CAPITALISATION i

As at 31 March 2017, the market capitalisation of the listed R2017F3A318 ' A RAIE BT
securities of the Company was approximately HK$454 million 1 48 #11,680,000,0000% A & & B% W 71 (B
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of 0278 E  AAF LMBEHHNTEL
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.27 per share. £454,000,0007% T °

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT ARNLORERE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company BIEARNGESH A ARER MBS
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has A REZE2017FE3A31B IEFE RRAK
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules FWBEH ARG —EH#&RF EMREIEE
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and as at the date of this RARFRE

report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS Bk ERAN

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group RFRREEAREL  AEEEES
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the EEZHHETET 2EFEH A 2 2 EE
places where we operate in all material respects. EE KRR o

56 PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFRBEEX

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled NATVEGSEMEETE  SETEARK
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against R0 77 B B A5 1 o] B 28 Bsk 3 A B 1t 4R 8
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or ZHERKLSETE  BNESAEERLAD
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in RIEERESEE HESEFEAF ZHGE
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend S THEESEEBERI

to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may

attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability ARARIRFACLBERAFEE2FNESS
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate TRE  AESREEEHRE-
cover for the directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREHEREBE

Save for below, there is no material subsequent event Br NatE AN - ANQ Al AR E B R201743
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31 March A1 B REEANF R A AW EEITEMR
2017 and up to the date of this annual report. BEAHBEIR-

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Y |

'* 1 d 't ‘ ¢ .‘i—;\;-il. E AKX 1 e L,,!.-i..',.. ...a.nm Ty

-



Board resolution approving the partial return of the deposit
placed by the controlling shareholders to the Group pursuant
to the Deed of Indemnity

The controlling shareholders of the Company provided
indemnity (“Deed of Indemnity” dated 25 September 2014
as mentioned in the prospectus of the Company) in favour of
the Group in relation to, among others, taxation in respect of
income earned by the Group on or before 16 October 2014,
being the listing date of the Company, save for tax liabilities
which have already been provided for in the audited accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries up to 31 March 2014. In
particularly, the controlling shareholders have deposited a sum
of HK$20 million in favour of the Group solely for the purpose
of settling any claim from tax authorities in Macau or Hong
Kong and the costs incurred in connection with the Machinery
Lease Agreement and the Machinery Agency Agreement before
the listing date of the Company. The said sum of HK$20
million shall not be released and returned to the controlling
shareholders until and after all claims, if any, related to the
above have been concluded and fully settled and/or time-
barred in both Hong Kong and Macau.

Pursuant to the latest tax opinion on the Macau tax positions
for the years 2013 and 2014 issued by Reanda EFA; and the
tax opinion on the Hong Kong and Macau tax positions for
the years 2013 and 2014 issued by Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited on 13 June 2017, (a) the final and conclusive tax
assessment and final tax demand note for the years 2013 and
2014 were issued by the tax authority in Macau, the Group
has fully settled the required tax for the years of assessment
of 2013 and 2014 in Macau; the Macau tax assessment for
the years 2013 and 2014 have been concluded, final and
settled and (b) there is no tax liability so far demanded by
Hong Kong tax authority in respect of the transactions and
income contemplated under the Machinery Lease Agreement
and the Machinery Agency Agreement and they are satisfied
to conclude that no additional tax provisions are required for
the above. Besides, their opinion is line with the Hong Kong
tax opinions provided by Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A Limited and
provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, both of which dated 29
September 2014,
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EEEWRE

In June 2017, the directors (including all of the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company resolved to partially
return HK$17 million out of the deposit of HK$20 million
together with all the bank interests earned by the deposit to the
controlling shareholders in view of the updated tax positions
mentioned above and the estimate on maximum exposure
made by the tax advisers of the Company. Mr. Lau Chun Ming
and Ms. Leung Lai So, being the indemnifiers abstained from
voting in relation to the said resolution in the board meeting.

Notwithstanding the return of the said HK$20 million (whether
in part or in full) from the Group, the controlling shareholders
irrevocably confirmed that, all their obligations, save for deposit
a sum of HK$20 million to the Group, set out in the Deed of
Indemnity remain valid.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_
pwc

To the Shareholders of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 163, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as

B A BE R

MREEFBR(E)

follows: N

J Accounting for construction contracts — estimated costs . FEREAEANSTRE - Bt A K
and profit recognition & I FE R

. Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and ° Merm R a st ol A 5 2 o

equipment

Key Audit Matter
BREFTER

Accounting for construction contracts -
estimated costs and profit recognition

Refer to note 2.11 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.
F2HEARS T BRMEMT2.11 REGE M BERERW
5 e

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s
entire gross profit of HK$145,225,000 was derived
from construction works.

BIE2017F3A31HILEE -
145,225,000 TR B RZETIE -

ESEEZHEN

The recognition of costs and profit on construction
contracts is based on the stage of completion of
contract activity by reference to work performed
at balance sheet date as a percentage of the total
contract value.
BRESHMKAR &R K2 EEEBTETIRRG
BEANEBERSLLBRESLEBNT IRERER -

SREME

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEERREETSE

BESONSTEE — Mt A RERER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for percentage of completion of
construction work, estimated costs and profit
recognition of construction contracts included:
HEREHRESCANBEEIRTIAD L - HEhK
AR MERHN G RIE - HMAZHKDNEFBHE

= We assessed and tested the key controls over
the budgetary process.

-  BAEHERASAEE BTN EEE -

- We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group for agreed contract sum and
variations, if any.

- EHFMERBEEEENEAREIRSANMES
HeBEhEE (F) -

- We checked the stage of completion to the
external architects’ and quantity surveyors’
certificates; and tested, on a sample basis,
the revenue recognition based on percentage
of completion and the calculations of contract
costs and gross profits.

— BT TR B B SN E SR K TRDRI S AM
B WERTIA DL HKRERER - 8K
MENFHEETHRERH -

=NEZEREEARLT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BARESAEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREESEE BMHWET AR ERRETSE

Recognition of costs and profit on contracts requires —
significant judgement and estimates of budgeted
gross profit as well as the expected recovery of costs
arising from additional work performed throughout
the contracts.

BRIMKAR S G N ERTZHRAEN RFEHAREBR
SREFETEIINTIZME K AES WK EETT
BARHER R AhET -

Costs and profit recognition requires significant time
and resources to audit due to the magnitude as well
as the judgement and estimates involved.

BRI RS ERAN B HEH REFTEAN - ALK
AR uMNEREZBARNERERERETE °

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

, 't

"i 4Gé=iLﬁa-

We selected, on a sample basis, contracts
to examine management’'s budget of the
cost component, such as costs of materials,
subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted component cost to
supporting documents including but not limited
to invoices, price quotation and rate of labour
costs.

BAEMEEDREA  UBREEEHM KR
- DBREBERRBEBERAREXNRNEKIINTEE -
B TR B AR BB 9 B A AN B 58 S 14 B AR L B
CEPERRETRRER  REERBBEHRAE
1& o

For each selected contract, we compared by
cost component of the actual cost incurred up
to year end to the budgeted cost and obtained
explanation from management for any material
variation.
HREMNEBEDNER - BRME KBS KAERK S
DEHEFABENER SHEEZ SEL AL S
WA EAERNEEERGAEDA

We compared the historical actual gross profit
margin to those budgeted to assess the quality
of management budgetary process.
HMELBBAEERENREFHERE - AT
HEBREERENME -

—
4
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B BT RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE BMWETNAEERRETSE

- We discussed with the Group’s quantity
surveyors and project managers about the
status of the projects, to identify any variations
of contracts and claims, and to obtain
explanations for fluctuations in margins and
changes in budget as well as the expected
recovery of variations. We also inspected the
correspondence with customers and sub-
contractors and the minutes of management’s
regular internal meetings, on a sample basis, for
corroboration of their explanations.

- HBMEEESEMITRAISARIER LR HRE
BRR UABFIESEHNEERBR - W tai
TRE  REZERIFEHETKE S LHE TG
RS - ZRMTEMERBEEEPRDBEEZ
BEBEANREREANBEZN G R0 - AE
B R ©

63

- For projects with potential dispute with
customers, we discussed with the Group’s
external project advisers the basis in concluding
the minimum amount the Group is able to
realise from the projects. We inquired their basis
of conclusion and checked relevant evidence
including agreements and correspondence with
customers and sub-contractors.

- HRAgERFERFZEMNIER BMEEESE
Er NS EEEARSEEER  STREEEA
NIBEEEFRNRESENEESEE - BHMEEH
b FIE HEE EE - WZBHBEE  BRERP
N B2 Bt Mos e

We found the judgement and estimates adopted
by management in determining the estimated costs
and profit recognition of construction contracts are
supported by available evidence.
HEREAEETRES KB fhET B Kt T #E R0 P
JRE PR B I K PR ER AN RO St 5 T - R API S A B IR A )
BAMEE o

=NEZEREEARLT
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B A BE R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREEEE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Refer to note 2.5 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
B2HEAGTBREMEMT2.5 - FaWBmEKMT
4(a)BE bt RAETIA RHIFE13 -

As at 31 March 2017, there was plant and equipment
of HK$633,527,000 million. For the year ended 31
March 2017, depreciation of HK$25,268,000 was
recognised.

201753 A31H - # KR #/3633,527,000/8 7T °
B ZE2017F3HA31HILFE - ERERITE25,268,000
PETT °

Management estimates useful lives of the plant and
equipment by reference to the industry practice,
expected usage of the assets, expected repair
and maintenance, the technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements
in the market. Residual values of the machinery
and equipment are determined based on prevailing
market values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or the
value of scrap metal. Depreciation expense would be
significantly affected by the useful lives and residual
values of the plant and equipment as estimated by
management.

EBREDNSLETXEN  EBEEFEHRE  FHEHA
ERRE BATSELHNEEHARME X
FEBEE - hET R AT R R o M KGR
HOFRMREADREARSRREENRITMEE
E o MEtRAEEENRAKEHNEE - EREM
e ERENRIERERRRGREBESHINES
BEsAZE -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

. ‘in-‘?i. .

RREETER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWETNAEERRETSE

ERRBRENGETIEAFARMGRER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment included:
HEBEHRRRRXEOMTAIERFHARRERE
B HMEEINEFRE

= We discussed with the management on trends
of prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of plant and
equipment and the value of scrap metal at
year end. We performed research to verify the
management’s representation.

- HFMEREERERSEER R RENR SR
BEMNRTMEES REHANFROEE - Ff
BEETHAEUZEETEENRAL -

- We sample checked market quotations and
recent scrap metal price to assess whether
the residual value of each type of plants and
machineries are within reasonable range.

- HEMEWMERETSRE REHA T EER AT
HEERBRRENRREERSIBEHE -

= We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values to depreciation.

- ﬁﬁa%%%%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%%
MR EETHOERMESN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEER BN ESNMEEERETSE

Due to the significant judgement and estimates -
involved, specific audit focus was placed on this
area.

BRI R HE A EE - WHE T EES T
1EfE THRRIER °

We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
on changes or improvements in the market
which could result in technical or commercial
obsolescence. Furthermore, we tested, on a
sample basis, usage and movement of the
assets among different construction projects
and expenditure of repair and maintenance.
BIAEMERNELERRATSE S REEH
B B il =X 7 36 75 T A R AE TR SR R AT Rl R A AR
H o 358 HBRAEMEARTREZEEENEE
R MEBAREERRENFX -

We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

METRITE - B2 WA ERENRE
EARRENEENEAREAFHRFSKEER
Al

We found the judgement and estimates in
determining the useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment are supported by available
evidence.

BMRA  RETHEWM R XENFTERAFHARTRE
BERER B HE R —A R AR B o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF BB BT REMBERRAENEE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about BB E RGeS HRiEEER
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are ATF7E B PR BRFF ok 8 AR 1 28 B 22 N 58 AR
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, AL S IERE WHABERMER
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. XSRS - BRFERET (EARE

We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no MEBRFIOER BRIt 2NN 4 Rl 4EEH
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or B & o B2 AR A A A [\ 1E{a]
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this HiALTE FHAEERSE - SERE
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, ERKFERRE  BETREREIZRB(ES
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance FFEADEITHET X — B KER
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when PR L 17 72 B 4B AL 2% 3R o $E5R FRatt A LA (R HR
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are FFekERER oI e - IR A ETEH T M EE
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they JEARRE SR A] RE L B4R A B IS R RAFE F & ik
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic PRSI BEmMERFMEENEERE - BlE
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 8 B 65 FR PR AT AR ME B K o

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise ERB(EBBTELNETETNBRE
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism o BRPER T EHEHE  RETEEE

throughout the audit. We also: SREEE o FHMIp 67

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement o o Bl FNEE {5 BB A ERFF 2k 3 AR 1 B B

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due REMBRERFTEEANBERRAKN
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures Bk ZEt R TEIEFUAEY
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that ELCE R - A RIER T B EE &
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our EARE - EABRMAERAER-
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement HREBERE A R R EE &
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from BER  ERERM - KEERAE
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional Tl 2z £ B R B IR A BEE
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal EHMERERRIDE R SR A
control. BEE IR E SRR M B A E R R R

at #) L o

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to ° TRERTHEBEA RN IR E - AR

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are SHEENETER  BE L IEY
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose EXEENIEHNBEREERER

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

=NEZEREEARLT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT R B RSN ERRRIENET
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (4=)
(Continued)

68

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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mEzEkER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 #Z201743A31H LFE

2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
P = TET TAT

Revenue A 5 817,682 1,061,482
Cost of sales $H 65 B AR 7 (672,457) (851,470)

Gross profit EF 145,225 210,012
Other (loss)/income, net Hi (BE)

W — &R 6 (906) 1,010
Administrative expenses ITHEFRA X 7 (45,451) (36,655)

Operating profit K v A 98,868 174,367
Finance income B 75 A 8 2,677 2,816
Finance costs M%ER 8 (10,330) (11,674)

Finance costs, net PEER - FR 8 (7,653) (8,858)

Profit before income tax k& BT 15 %5 BT i 7 91,215 165,509
Income tax expense FriS B = 9 (12,235) (12,632)

70

Profit and total comprehensive FERMNRE2EEA
income for the year FERE 78,980 152,877

Profit and total comprehensive income RARERTFE A
attributable to equity holders of the FEiE&F EEE
Company WA 78,980 152,877

Note 2017 2016
B = HK cents HK cents

Basic and diluted earnings per share ERERNREFTREF 11 4.70 9.23

The notes on pages 75 to 163 are an integral part of these FI5E168EZMTE A = ira B HE 24
consolidated financial statements. TR ©

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Assets

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Income tax recoverable

Restricted bank balances

Short-term bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents
(excluding bank overdraft)

Total assets

Equity

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The notes on pages 75 to 163 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

BE

FRBEE
PR Ko 2%
BB EE
AHLESREE
Be RBNHR

RBEE
RWEZFARRES
B - AANIER

H Aty FE U R IR
RREFANTIREEHE

A Y B P 1S 7R
XRHIRITAEER
REIRTTIERK
ReMReFEY
(TRERTEX)

BEEHAE

i
BA KB
B
G

HEEEE

Note
B5E

13
19
14
15

15

16

17
17

mEEERER

As at 31st March 2017 7201793 A31H

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET

633,527 605,566
917 131
19,750 =
765 2,617
654,959 608,314
157,450 295,954
6,226 592
18,614 28,562
18 116
20,864 20,5659
- 17,797
347,943 183,060
551,115 546,640
1,206,074 1,154,954
4,200 4,200
692,031 650,851
696,231 655,051

FI5R163 B MFALZTLRAEMBREZ
AR ER S o

s 417
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBEERER

As at 31st March 2017 72017938318

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
= FET FET
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term borrowings RHER 22 53,120 120,873
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHRAaE 19 53,453 43,782
Amount due to a director Bl —REEHIE 21, 26(d) 20,864 20,559
127,437 185,214
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and retention payables BRNESZHEBERRE S 20 79,534 87,307
Accruals and other payables & 5T 2R I8 N E i FE {5 FOE 20 13,969 16,298
Amounts due to customers for ENEEALITIESHE
contract work 16 82,707 28,672
Borrowings B 22 198,621 167,444
Income tax payable JERTET ISR 7,575 14,968
72 382,406 314,689
Total liabilities MR- "o e B e 509,843 . 499,903
Total equity and liabilities EakEEAHE 1,206,074 1,154,954

The financial statements on pages 70 to 163 were approved by E70E1638 2 B K E R2017F6 A
the Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and were signed on its 23ABEFSHE - WA TIATRESE

behalf. 2,
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2| 9% 58 REH
Director : Director
EE EF
The notes on pages 75 to 163 are an integral part of these FI5R168EMTE AN S R A M BRI
consolidated financial statements. HERKER D o

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERSER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 #Z201743A31H LFE

Share Share Other  Retained _
capital premium reserves earnings Total
RA& R4} (E Hitt % REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TET TET
At 1 April 2015 m2015F4 18 4,000 135,893 10,500 377,387 527,780
Comprehensive income £ ON
Profit for the year KEEER - - - 152,877 152,877
Contribution by and BEANEER
distribution to owners m E 1E i 0 2k
Issuance of placement shares EARERD
(note 18) (FizE18) 200 58,194 = z 58,394
Final dividends relating to the year HHEEZ2015F3A31H
ended 31 March 2015 IFEEHRERE = = = (63,000) (63,000)
Interim dividend relating to the year A& £2016%£3 5318
ended 31 March 2016 (note 10) HFEERNHERS
(Fiz£10) - - = (21,000) (21,000)
At 31 March 2016 1201663 A31H 4,200 194,087 10,500 446,264 655,051
\ 73
At 1 April 2016 R20165F4R1H 4,200 194,087 10,500 446,264 655,051
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year AEEHEF - - - 78,980 78,980
Contribution by and EEANHER
distribution to owners | ELAE i 1 2k
Final dividends relating to the year B & 2201635318
ended 31 March 2016 (note 10) LEENRERE
(Fiz£10) - - - (29,400) (29,400)
Interim dividend relating to the year A B& £20174F3 8318
ended 31 March 2017 (note 10) FFEEMTERS
(P10 - - - (8,400) (8,400)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3R31H 4,200 194,087 10,500 487,444 696,231

The notes on pages 75 to 163 are an integral part of these

FTSE13ELMEAUEREHNBHRERZ
HAER D °

consolidated financial statements.

s 417




ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

b2 =] IE%/)ILE%

For the year ended 31st March 2017 E{£201743A31H L F/E

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FTART T
Cash flows from operating activities REREZTHNRERE
Net cash generated from operations A %,Eéjjﬁﬁﬁiﬁigrgé 25(a) 313,230 187,481
Interest paid Eﬁ A2 (6,173) (7,153)
Interest received 2 F 2 2,677 2,816
Interest element of finance lease payments g & fﬁ Y F B A9 8 (3,852) (4,087)
Restricted bank balances X R HI R1T4E 17 (305) 17,022
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EEF ?%E'fﬁ)fé (10,645) (5,922)
Net cash generated from RETBMBREFE
operating activities 294,932 190,157
Cash flows from investing activities REREZTBNHRSRE
Acquisition of available for sales WA HERE
investment 14 (19,750) =
Purchase of plant and equipment 08 B M N RS (53,454) (63,127)
Prepayment for purchase of plant BB R ERFENEMNR
and equipment - (629)
Proceeds from sales of plant and oS A K SR A ) FT1S 5RIE
equipment 25(b) 28 =
Decrease/(increase) in short-term REBITERRL
bank deposits (1 n) 17,797 (9,797)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFARESTFHE (55,379) (63,553)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNEESRE
74 Capital element of finance lease BERENRNERILD
payments (60,868) (48,978)
Drawdown of long-term bank loans EREEITER 30,585 67,800
Repayment of long-term bank loans 1g@§ﬁlﬂ%ﬁﬁ%m (107,857) (65,970)
Drawdown of short-term bank loans REVEHRITER 204,916 316,414
Repayment of short-term bank loans BEEHRITER (103,643) (391,728)
Decrease in restricted bank balances X PR 1 $R 17 45 2R 17 - 17,460
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares  Z£17&@ & 2 FT 18 208 - 60,200
Share issuance costs BRDBETER - (1,806)
Dividend paid BERE (37,800) (84,000)
Net cash used in financing activities mEZBHAAREFEE 000000 (74,667) (120,608)
Net increase in cash and ReRASEEMEMNTEE
cash equivalents 164,886 5,996
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRERACEED
beginning of the year 183,057 177,061
Cash and cash equivalents REKNBRERBRELZEY
at end of the year 347,943 183,057
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEBUIN
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREeEEY A7 347,943 183,060
Bank overdraft RITEX 22 - )
347,943 183,057
The notes on pages 75 to 163 are an integral part of these 27551638 2 Bt uiﬁlﬂzﬁ SN e

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and have been

prepared under the historical cost convention.

e MR

—REH

SHREEEARARA ([ARADS
BIEFEHEEOIFE22E(RAEE)
(19615 A PI3 - K ix & RAEFT &)
ERERSTMKAIAEREER
NETICI NN e il 0 v b | v
7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

RABRBREERAR - WHHEB
RE (BB AEE]) TEREFER
RPN B TR KM B ARTS -

ARRMZENEERERZABR

NAERLET ©

BRBMEN  REMBRERIAE
(AT 25 -

75

EAREHBERBE

RAEMLEFERAVBREARANE
ZEHBERIENTX - BRBHEH
I HEBRRAABZINFE—
HEE®EHN -

21 RELEHE
KRR ZERE YV IEHRKR TR E
BERSMASEGZES
B iR 2R (BB ISR E

ERDBRE - WIAE LKA

=NEZEREEARLT

w




ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERBEE)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
The preparation of the financial statements in RIE BB B 75 3 15 25 Bl 42U B
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of HHRERABERAE THEIM
certain critical accounting estimates. It also e BEERERASEES
requires management to exercise its judgement in BRER s TR ZE 1 HU BT o 0 RER
the process of applying the Group’s accounting ZH B SRBR AR - B ERE
policies. The areas involving a higher degree KRGt G MBREFEXN
of judgement or complexity, or areas where 5B W & IS AT FE44R R o

assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (8) AREERAEIFTET RASNE
Group GI2EA
The following new standard and amendments LA 3748 Al R 228 2 (& 7T
to standards are mandatory for the Group’s RAE B FHIRR2016F4
financial year beginning 1 April 2016 and have A1 8 8B IS T 58 il 5
been adopted by the Group: FA - WRERAREEFEA :
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative EASH BN  KEE
()
76 HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarfication of Acceptable Methods BRGHENSI0R FEALRD
(Amendments) of Depreciation and Amortisation REREH 2R BESYNA
2385 (&3] MEE
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants BEOENZ6T AENED
(Amendments) RkEEETE
415 (B3]
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate BAERENEDE BUUBRRM
Financial Statements (BzT) Ent
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the EANBREEL  RAEE ER
HKAS 28 (Amendment) Consolidation Exception 2105 BANE  HBAAKZ
FEEAZIER  SMER
Bk e
£08%: (B3T)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest ERMBREEN  WBRREZ
in Joint Operations EAEACHD) BRmEqE
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts BRUBALEN  EERTER
$145
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements BREUMBREEY 20125720146
2012-2014 Cycle * (B31) BHMEE
Hik
The adoption of these new standard and iz SRR R 2R 2
amendments to standards does not have any BRI AEE GRS P BER
significant impact to the results and financial ] - RNEERBBHRATE
position of the Group’s consolidated financial EEATE-
statements.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEIEXE (&)
(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted (b)  ERERAEIFTET RACIEET
ZERY
The following new standards and amendments AT #a] R RAEFTE B
have been issued but are not effective for the o - B R2016F4H1H
financial year beginning on or after 1 April %2 BB BEE =
2016 and have not been early adopted: é’éi’xﬂl AR ARIZ R I
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of Cash Flows - REGHEASIE RoRER-
Disclosure i) il
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income Taxes - Recognition BRRGIENE  ARH-AAR
of Deferred Tax Assets for 2 (B30 REREDE
Unrealised Losses EHEEEY
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Classification and Measurement ERMBASEN  IBRALHRS
of Share-based Payment EACH) LER
Transactions ? Fpid
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments @ EANBREEL  SRMIAC
295
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERUBAEEN  REAEERE
(Amendments) between an Investor and its RIORRERET  hRRAR
Associate and Joint Venture @ BB (B3])  LXZAN
BELEY
HAY 77
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EANBREE  RARPEON
Customers © £15%: WA®
HKFRS 15 (Amendment) Classifications to HKFRS 15 BEANMAREN  BRMBAS
2153, (3]) ER|E15% 2
yaxd
HKFRS 16 Leases BRMBREEN  HEY
$16%
M Effective for the Group for annual period M 201741

oA

beginning on 1 January 2017.

T 55 %

o

SEAR

o Mt
&
Ih
WEL
IO

@ Effective for the Group for annual period @ M2018%F1A1H H
beginning on 1 January 2018. IRRFE B ASE
BB -
@ To be determined. ®) BEEFE -
@ Effective for the Group for annual periods A
beginning on 1 January 2019. ? gﬁ%oé?gﬁ%%%%@
[ HY X 7 i -~
BB -

Management is in the process of making 510 2 S 2y e
an assessment on the impact of these new g%g%%gﬁﬁﬁgﬁii
and revised standards, amendments or N I PN
interpretations. Other than HKFRS 9, HKFRS P e AR iy dl
15 and HKFRS 16 which may have an %%19&@”%15%’&%
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial 3 gﬁ%%ﬁ&\;& auémgﬁ
statements, the directors of the Group do not T ALY A 4 8] > b & BE K
anticipate that the application of the other new HEH BN $§§f
and amendments to HKFRS will have material = R TE B B AT
impact on the results and financial position of % @@zﬁ%%@ﬁ%ﬁ%%
heSLl RIS S B S48 Lt
BARABERTE -
=NEZEREEARLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBE®MEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MRBLHEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted (b) ERERAAEI AT RASIE S,
(Continued) ER ()

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

While the Group has yet to undertake a
detailed assessment of the classification and
measurement of financial assets currently
classified as available-for-sale financial assets
would appear to satisfy the conditions for
classification as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and hence
there will be no change to the accounting for
these assets.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to have a significant impact
on the classification and measurement of its
financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the
new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and have not been
changed.

BB B EEREIH
T T A

HEIEF AT RS S R E
ENcRatzoE &t
SMKIEFER - WNBEH
HEAZHBRENERE
EZHBERER -

HARANEERHAHERE
EZ BN EETFA
aHE - BB AT D AR
HHESREEREER
NHEBBEMEEKA
(MR HEEBEMEE
WA AR Blt#ZE
BEZARLENE o

Atk - AEE A FERAHIE
SIEHESREEZ DM
MAEBREATE

HRREEFERIEE
RBEAFEERBRS AR
ZEMBBEZEE M
AEBYEEIMZFR

& kS TeHAEEe
BEEZEHEAEAY
& RILFERRASIBE
B e ERIFE395 [ £ Rl
TE:-#ERAME] R

HTETE

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change
the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018.

Based on the transitional provisions in the
completed HKFRS 9, early adoption in phases
was only permitted for annual reporting
periods beginning before 1 February 2015.
After that date, the new rules must be adopted
in their entirety. The Group does not intend to
adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.

2

EXETBRBE(F)
21 WEEE(E)
(b) I ARIRANEIFET RASIEE
BRI (&)

BB B EEREI%
2B ITAE)

FR] 2RI TR IR NI B A
MEF 28 - FEHIHL
BEASEERESRTA
ZHEBEEEMEE - LH
EEREANRR 2 FE

P(Jo

B 7 B 75 & 2E Rl 595
P 7B #E2018F1 A 1H 4
Z1ERIR 2 TBFE AR IE
- RIBEB BT HRELE
B 25955k 2 1B E M 163K

'—‘—'/\4_-
/\ l:l

F2015%F2H1H

R FA 2 S E s B
BRIRR&RM - EZAE -
R A LA BURA © N
5 B 58 )1 B B RN
RABBYBREEF

Q5% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2:1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for
the recognition of revenue. This will replace
HKAS 18 which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard
is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements and has identified service
revenue to be the area that is likely to be
affected:

° The application of HKFRS 15 may
result in the identification of separate
performance obligations which could
affect the timing of the recognition of
revenue.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At
this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the consolidated balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating
and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly

change.

2

EXETBRBE(F)
21 WEEE(E)
(b) I ARIRANEIFET RASIEE
BRI (&)

BB BEHEERE1S
FIHEEEFE ALK
AJ (&)

BB YR
8 2018F1 A1H K 2
1% R 2 B B E o8 ) e

7 ° RULREE -
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e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MRBLHEE(E)
(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted (b) ERERAAEI AT RASIE S,
(Continued) ER ()

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB EERE16

FIHE (&)

The standard will affect primarily the BN E R E K
SEKEHEE 2 AK-
REBEBH NEEE

accounting for Group’s operating leases. As
at the reporting date, the Group has non-

cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$8,737,000, see note 23(b). Directors do
not foresee any material impact on the net
profit of the Group as a result of adoption of
HKFRS16.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.

B A B S &
#£8,737,00078 7T (M5
23(b)) - EEW T FEEE
FNE B SR ERIE
16 EHAEBMAFE
ERERTE -

ETHREREREHRE
EBEHEMBHIMER
KB TAERRENTE
ME R (REBM R
HERNE16HR) 2 LBER
o

FEBR2019F1 A1H
32 B REE R
HIHETT o RRULPEER - A&
BT HR A A A B AT
Mz ZER -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MEBAA
2.2.1 Consolidation 2214568 Ak

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured M A E AR B HAY
entity) over which the Group has control. The ER(RIELAEER) -
Group controls an entity when the Group {H$%@2§7¥K}Ej§ﬁ@
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable EAE RS A & o] 3R A A PR
returns from its involvement with the entity R - BAR ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬂ
and has the ability to affect those returns ERENZEZELOR
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries o BIARKRENZEREE
are consolidated from the date on which BEEHE - B AR BIE
control is transferred to the Group. They are il fEEE A AN B 2 B B4R
deconsolidated from the date that control EWN: EFJJ:? %z B
ceases. REVESRE A
The Group applies the acquisition method ZIKEIFEFH*%EJrHﬁZE%?iH%
to account for business combinations. The EERE AR o BLUBEEHT
consideration transferred for the acquisition EQQ%%E’\JRE?\%Z’K% 83
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets EFEEEE  FTELR
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former BRAETIRENRF
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests B - TEEAERERA
issued by the Group. The consideration RELHMEENEMRNE
transferred includes the fair value of any ESBBHNAFE - 5%
asset or liability resulting from a contingent B G2 BT U B9 A 5k
consideration arrangement. ldentifiable RIEENRAENEER
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent A B ERVIRIEE B H
liabilities assumed in a business combination AT ERFE -

are measured initially at their fair values at the

acquisition date.

=NEZEREEARLT
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e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 WERAAE)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 22146 ABK (&)
Intra-group transactions, balances and EEARRMBERS RS
unrealised gains on transactions between R #E R MR IR FIGE T
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised LAYTEH - REBRBHETT
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, A% S - BLER - KiE
amounts reported by subsidiaries have NAEIfTHmENSEEED
been adjusted to confirm with the Group’s HE - EAEENES
accounting policies. BE—% -

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2202 T HHEIREK
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for KB R B 2% & THIRAK
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct ARUREARR ° BB 1
attributable costs of investment. The results BEEEBENR - KB
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the NARIZFEBETIRAREIE
Company on the basis of dividend received B & e U iR B A A 85
and receivable. R o
Impairment testing of the investments in fisl B% B8 3@ BT B A B R
subsidiaries is required upon receiving R R EHE 2 MmUY
a dividend from these investments if the A HBER S fin PR B S B S
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive RAKE Z REEBAE
income of the subsidiary in the period the WERZEEFE(BRE
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount BMB)REGEEUBERERRN
of the investment in the separate financial ZREE ' AIRBZER
statements exceeds the carrying amount in BUE AR BB - S AKT
the consolidated financial statements of the BRI E#EITRER
investee’s net assets including goodwill. A o
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e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting 2.3 A iR
Operating segments are reported in a manner KESHMNEHRHAEEEE
consistent with the internal reporting provided LERAREREANLREN T
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief N — 2 o 1E H SR ES R TE B
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for TESERTIEREREE B
allocating resources and assessing performance of ENREREFHEED PR
the operating segments, has been identified as the i o

executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation 2.4 HNEE[E K,
(a) Functional and presentation currency (@ EER ZZIE
ltems included in the financial statements of AREESEBUEDmEA
each of the Group’s entities are measured FreasEl  HUAZEE
using the currency of the primary economic REFMEEELERE
environment in which the entity operates ME®E ([Thee BE%]) &
86 (the “functional currency”). The consolidated & o AU HRRIABIT
financial statements are presented in HK$, 25 - BT AR RERD
which is the Company’s functional and the EEBEAREENEYE
Group’s presentation currency. o
(b)  Transactions and balances b) XZRiAEER
Foreign currency transactions are translated INERZ B ER 5 E R
into the functional currency using the Fﬁmﬁmiﬁg%mﬁﬁ‘ﬁ
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the ¥ o PR HEEARIA
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and INETFTENEBEERE
losses resulting from the settlement of such BIRFERERBREELN
transactions and from the translation at year- SNERB RN A 2 E K
end exchange rates of monetary assets and R NFER ©

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

= all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

assets.

2
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant
and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.6).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.7.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables,
and available for sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

2

EAREHBEBEE)

2.6

2.7

e MR

FEMEENRE

REE R e EEN D ET - FH#
BEESRBEETR
WEBRIZEE 2 REER D
HujE & aEmZRER - 1
Y lel & 58 A B E R R ERH
ERAREABEMETOER
2E - RFHRER  BER
AEBLHNR)NASREE
ABEUVCGREELEM) TIAD
B MEBUIINZEEREE
HERE - AR F RS Bk
AEBARBERN TEE -

TRE

i

2.7.1 748

AEEKECREENR
AT R - B3R e R
HARAHHE - DG
FHBAZREEN B M
E o BEERENSHERE
ETeREENDE -

39




ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 ©MEEE)
2.7.1 Classification (Continued) 2.7.1 7%
(a) Loans and receivables (@) EXRERTIE
Loans and receivables are non- ER R EWRIER
derivative financial assets with fixed or £ [E E =k 7] E E
determinable payments that are not KB 4R BB T 35
quoted in an active market. They are EMENTESRME

(b)

included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and retention receivables”,
“deposits and other receivables” (note

DoRC

2.10), “restricted bank balances”, “short-
term bank deposits” and “cash and
cash equivalents” (noted 2.12) in the

consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 ©MEEE)
2.7.2 Recognition and measurement 2.7 2R R E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial NERAREAREER
assets are recognised on the trade-date — PRIBEENAEEAEE
the date on which the Group commits to ARHEEENR S AT
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are R o BRI IEIR A E S
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction BERINEZFBERE
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair EZ’RE 5% AFE
value through profit or loss. Financial assets IR SEATER © & UER
are derecognised when the rights to receive REKEZH & RENE
cash flows from the investments have expired FENHA QB #E - A
or have been transferred and the Group has EEC B AERNTER
transferred substantially all risks and rewards BB R ERELE - &
of ownership. Loans and receivables are BB EBMRIETER - BER
subsequently carried at amortised cost using RIEW IR E & A BRI
the effective interest method. Available-for-sale BRI ER o 7]
financial assets are subsequently carried at fair HEESHEELRBRIEA
value. FEF R - 91
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non- DERAHEE BB
monetary securities classified as available for FIEEEEFESEZ ATE
sale are recognised in other comprehensive B EE M 2R A P HE
income. e
When securities classified as available for ESHEAFMHEE 2 F
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated EHSRER - EEmT
fair value adjustments recognised in equity HRZ BT AFEAE
are included in the consolidated statement of FIA4rE 2R &= KA
comprehensive income as “gains and losses [ BB Hz s M EiE |
from investment securities”. A o
Interest on available-for-sale securities Al S B S5 HBERA
calculated using the effective interest method KEFEZ B ELGER
is recognised in the consolidated statement M mKANER SIS E
of comprehensive income as part of other U A o A T] &
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity STAEZKRE  EAEH
instruments are recognised in the consolidated HQHXﬁFEJ IR 2 WA HETE
statement of comprehensive income as part *EZ EEEKZRA
of other income when the Group’s right to ﬁﬁw B E A A o

receive payments is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued) 27 ©MEEE)

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments 27382/ TA

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

EHRARLRRORI 21T
AT EHE R 25
KA BIEFREE R R
BREENRAE - AEH
TREERAE AR
REERBRABEF
o RERORN 21T
BTSEURNAREM R
AR RETELD &
NEEHBEMHANER
KI5 BIZ T A SR FIBAT ©

2.8 Impairment of financial assets 28 SREERE

92

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (8) HEEKAIGRZ EE

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

EAREHBEBEE)

28 TMEEMEE)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a) EHEEK AR EE

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

(%)

m@m SR A BERIAER

F—HEBALHKRE
KW&@%*E%Q%K
MEHAE BBABA
BEMNESETTEMMEE
A URAERBEBER
Rt ARRBRSRERR
AETENRD - flaniE
MR R B E
AR BB

& R % e Wk IE A Al
T EEEDNRBEEE
FHEEESHEER
ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁm

i/}lbi(T@%ﬁﬁ*%
ERRREAER)RE
ZHEMERAE - BEN
FREMEEG WA - &S
%%EH'JEZ”?/E.\T%%%%WEE

is recognised in the consolidated statement o (W E Rk = B Hi#%
of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity ﬁ?ﬁx%@)%']a—\ﬁ% CE =
investment has a variable interest rate, the £ 1] 8 (B &5 18 A9 B 3R =

discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using

an observable market price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 ©mMBEEREE)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (a) EHEHHK SR EE

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

For equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income - is reclassified from equity and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Leased assets 29 MEBE

The Group leases certain machinery and equipment.
Leases of machinery and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased machinery
and equipment and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and
other long-term payables. The interest element of
the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The machinery and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the

lease term.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See note 2.7.1(a) for
further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade receivables and note 2.8(a) for a description of
the Group’s impairment policies.

Construction contracts

A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11
Construction contracts, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of the reporting period. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

2.12

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount of
revenue to recognise in a given period. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to work
performed to date as a percentage of total contract
value.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each contract
as either an asset or a liability. A contract represents
an asset where costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings; a contract represents a liability where the
opposite is the case.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, and a bank overdraft. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are

shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Share capital 2.13 &K

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2.15 Borrowings 2.15 X
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, BT EATFTENREES
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings X ZRATER - fERE%BIE

are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any B AT BR - BTS2 IE (40
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction R 5K 72N ) B S O] (B (8 H (E
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the M ZZBENEREAER T A
consolidated statement of comprehensive income REGE A T EREERANTER o
over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.

2 EXREHBEBEGE)

2.15

2.16
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e IS ERRM

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBE®MEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Provisions 217 s

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the

EASEAMEELNEMHFE
EREMEESHEERE M
BITZEERAEEERER
M MERR L SRR 5
fhat - RIREREE - TEH K
KGR EBERERESE -

IR ZRBELEE - BIETT
ZAEREEERERMLA
LEERMNEFBRRERKE
E o BiE R R B B Y 1A
—IHEHE R LR ] BE R
& DARERRE -

BBRAB AL X (7] R BRI

100

expenditures expected to be required to settle the HmsEEEREHERENRZE
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current FHETERROEf) &8
market assessments of the time value of money and HERTEEMERYMEES
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in = o A E S =m0y 8
the provision due to passage of time is recognised ERABNBERS °
as interest expense.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 BNEA RGEFEFTISHE
The tax expense for the period comprises current B R P BB X B 5BV EA &
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in BIERT SR c MIBIIRGEE D
the consolidated statement of comprehensive mzERAEDR @ EERE M
income, except to the extent that it relates to 2EMASEENERERD
items recognised in other comprehensive income EHE BB IERIN - FEIIE
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also MK BRENSIREMET
recognised in other comprehensive income or WA EERERANTEDR o
directly in equity, respectively.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair values where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met.
Revenue is shown net of sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the contracts
as detailed in note 2.11 above.

Rental income from leasing of machinery and
equipment is recognised based on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.21

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

222

2.23

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessors) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Market risk

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the Company’s functional currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$ and Macao Patacas
(“MOP”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in HK$ and
MOP, and there are no significant assets
and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. Management considered that
the foreign exchange risk for MOP is
minimal since exchange rate fluctuation
was minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank
balances and borrowings. Except for
borrowings with variable interest, the
Group has no other significant interest-
bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Cash and bank
balances at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

81

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(®)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, if the interest
rates on borrowings had been 100
basis-points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would be HK$2,276,000
(2016: HK$2,579,000) lower/higher
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits, restricted bank balances, trade and
retention receivables and deposits and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, 97%
(2016: 96%) of the Group’s revenue
was derived from its top two (2016: five)
customers. As at 31 March 2017, the Group
had concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2016: 100%) of the trade receivables were
due from the Group’s three (2016: six)
customers.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and retention receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment provision is made for the
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number
of sources including orderly realisation of
short-term financial assets, receivables and
certain assets that the Group considers
appropriate and long term financing including
long-term borrowings are also considered
by the Group in its capital structuring. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and interest
bearing borrowings which enable the Group
to continue its business for the foreseeable

future.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHBREREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FBRBREZE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mBEZERE (&)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interests payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the year end date). Where
the loan agreement contains a repayable on
demand clause which gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time,
the amounts repayable are classified in the
earliest time bracket in which the lender could
demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERBRERE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBRBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RmEELER (&)
On demand
and  Between  Between
less than 1and2 3and5 More than
1 year years years 5 years Total
REXR
SR-F -EWME ZZRf RBIE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

TiEn TER TEn TiEn TER

As at 31 March 2017 R2017%£3A31A

Trade and retention payables ERESHERRAS 79,534 - - - 79,534
Accruals and other payables B RSB 12,973 - - - 12,973
Amount due to a director ER—ZEZ58 - - 21,849 - 21,849
Long-term bank loans RARITER 38,277 20,041 7,419 - 65,737
Short-term bank loans RERTER 137,250 - - - 137,250
Obligations under finance leases ~ REAMEE(E 26,396 17,797 9,206 - 53,489
As at 31 March 2016 #201653531H

Trade and retention payables ERESTERRE S 87,307 = = - 87,307
Accruals and other payables st RERE RN 15,446 - - - 15,446
Amount due to a director EN-2E%50E - - - 28,725 28,725
Bank overdraft RTEL 3 i = T S
Long-term hank loans RARTER 90,841 32,404 23,760 - 147,005
Short-term bank loans RERTER 35,867 - - - 35,867
Obligations under finance leases ~ FEHEE (T 48,499 40,408 28,953 - 117,860

SHRREBERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR ER MR
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHBREREE(E)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EBEXREMER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

AEBEEEEANBRRRERE
AEBAFELENED 1
T A% BCR 5 O (2] 3R e A H Al 4
SRHA ARENZS - RERE
RENBEAEBIAREERK
A o

AEEWNEAGEEREER
RER > REFKHBEARR
B AERERGHEIN TR
ROBREERE RMEREEE
& BIOTHREILEEENR

to reduce borrowings. The Group monitors capital DEZ - AEBNEEAGL
on the basis of gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is RERERN - EEBEBL I
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net BEFERNARESTE -]
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash BEFENBEFRRE RES

and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposit and

X

EEY EHBRITERALH®

4

) restricted bank balances pledged for security of the EEEFTBEBRTIEE 2 ZR
borrowings. The gearing ratios were as follows: BIIRITHEMBATE - EEAEL
3 (I N
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Borrowings (including obligations ER(EEREESEEER
under finance leases and bank RITES) (MiE22)
overdraft) (note 22) 251,741 288,317
Less: cash and cash equivalents W BRERASEEY
and short-term bank deposit VAR 2 HRSR 1T 15 5K (347,943) (200,857)
Net (cash)/debt (Be)  &BEFE (96,202) 87,460
Total equity 7w AR 696,231 655,051
Gearing ratio BEAGBLE N/ATEA 13%
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
. <% £ . |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HHRAREE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEEME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AEBHNEMEE (AJHEE

assets (other than available-for-sale financial assets) THREERIN) ReRBE (2

and financial liabilities, including cash and cash RBRReNBESEEY - MHR

equivalents, short-term bank deposits, restricted TER - XREIRITHEER JE

bank balances, trade and retention receivables, WESZHRERRES  EE K

deposits and other receivables, trade and H b B FRIE - BB S RIE

retention payables, other payables and borrowings MREAS - HMERIEKE

approximate their fair values, which either due to ) B EIE B8R S RIZ 8 A

their short-term maturities, or that they are subject R+ B ZEEENBEMNE

to floating rates. AEEEENQAFEEE -

The carrying amount of amount due to a director BN —RESFIENERER

was a reasonable approximation of its fair value. HAFERNSEAOH -

The Group’s financial instruments are measured AEBZzER T EEBNUTE

in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by NEEZ EHERE TS AEER

level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to REEEEABREATFEA
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into IR - zE| ABIKBAFERE
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: BEBENT=E :

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets ° HREENXBEETRM 113
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). SHME (CRERAE) (B

—E) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included o BRTE-ERMERNHRE
within level 1 that are observable for the asset G B ENB B
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or e Efthia A - Al REE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). (BRI an{E 4% ) sk fE #2 (BD

REER) (F=) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o BESN BB IERIE AT E
based on observable market data (that is, R IEEE R i A (BN 3E
unobservable inputs) (level 3). AIERGA) (E=F) -

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TAT

Level 3 1=

Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESRMEE

— Unlisted equity securities —FEEMBRAFZES 19,750 -

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 EAN-RE—E FZERSE

during the year. B FImEE -
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114

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy, the
industry practice, expected usage of the assets,
expected repair and maintenance, the technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Residual values
of the machinery and equipment are determined
based on prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets taking into account the condition of the
relevant assets or the value of scrap metal and other
economic considerations. Depreciation expense
would be significantly affected by the useful lives
and residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$2,795,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$8,116,000).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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AREBERRELBERBR
SRAANERNS  BEREE
RISEEHABERGRAR - A1
SRBRERTETRFENEER
BENKREAEFELERABOMGE
RARERS WA

(@) HWREREOGETAIERFSH
RFEREE

BREN2EREENEBE
X HEEEEBRR 11XE
B BERMAR BHREER
RRE  EAmSE LN EE
BOBMTEm R B - &
MR RN A A F
KR EOFSREETDRE
ARSFHRKEENRTMERE
E o XWEREBEEMMTEL
BEEEEREBEEZEA
= BEHEEMGEMERE
MAERFERRRREESY
TEEREEARTE -

EH R R AEO TR E EE—
R A10% + AR E ZE20174F
SAMBLFEMNEERE
#8412,795,000% 7t (20164 :
8,116,000/ L) °
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e MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESFMATRHE(Z)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Estimated impairment of plant and equipment (o) KRB E
The Group’s major operating assets represent AREBMEBLEEE SHEW
machinery and equipment. Management performs R - WMBESHEEXBR
review for impairment of the plant and equipment PR SRR R N SR A RO BR T (B
whenever events or changes in circumstances AlRE A E - AIE R ESE
indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets ZEBEETRENM -

may not be recoverable.

Management considered there was no impairment A A M K2 35 & BB A BT Bk BRI
indicator of machinery and equipment during the HMERSEIEE c BE-FHEN
year as these assets were used for profitable ke BEERE  EW
construction projects, and there is a strong demand =% 8 A 78 48 AR R A R (B D
of these plant and equipment in the second hand E &

market.

(c) Impairment of trade and retention receivables () REWEBEZIFRBERRESHE
Management determines the provision for ERERBEPINEELHK 115
impairment of trade and retention receivables X150 EBHIIRIT T L EE T R UL
based on the credit history of customers and the B 5B RIRE R E#
current market condition by business segment. & BT HERZEFNERR
Significant judgment is exercised on the assessment EA U B R e TEAH
of the collectability of receivables from each oo FEETHER  EEES
customer. In making the judgment, management EE—ZRIREE  WERERF
considers a wide range of factors such as results MER BEPANRBE (8
of follow-up procedures, customer payment trends &R 5R) BB P R B B AR
including subsequent payments and customers’ Mo MAEBREFPHNIF BN
financial positions. If the financial conditions of EEMAISSE ke - BIA]
the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, RETR I B o ZE UK
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make THRER W B &L ER G T
payments, additional allowances may be required. EHRESTHEERNTE -

The final outcome of the recoverability of these
receivables will impact the amount of impairment

required.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time
to time provided by the major contractors, suppliers
or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact
on the profit recognised in each period.

The Group recognised its contract revenue
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of the individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting period. The Group reviews and revised
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each construction contract as the contract
in progress. Management regularly reviews the
progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Macau. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is

made.

4

EEGTHEF RAE (E)

e MR

AEBBYNELRORMAR
B - EREMEHEEE
AEHEAHE - BZERX S
Kat B AR F &R BTG4
R AEEREBEEIHEASESD
M hEE - ERBAHIAE
AEEMEER - E%XFFEN
RRBBGRBNF AKRNE
BIR - AZEEEMBHEL
B B E m B &Y BN HA R FE
FISHEERABERTE -
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZTBER
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WABER BB BERMETIE
gross contract receipts on foundation works and ancillary EBREANEE WM - IR AKX
services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue SEAEERE - ERHWALT -

recognised is as follows:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Foundation works and ancillary services b £ T 12 % [ /8 IR 7% 817,682 1,061,482
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified RAAGMHITESTHERERELEE
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive BEBERRA - BTESTBELAEER
directors regard the Group’s business as a single XBE L RE—KEHE - WAERE
operating segment and reviews financial information R BEE o
accordingly.
(@) Segment information @@ DHWEFR
118 The Group’s revenue from external customers REFERBINEE P KA ZE
attributable to the countries in which the Group REERBEE (TEEEE
derives revenue and information about its non- FEMEERTHLESRE
current assets, excluding deferred income tax E)DEARREZRSEENA
assets and available-for-sale financial assets, based AEMAEERRZEEERN
on both the country of domicile of companies ERFTEAE M E B &5
holding these assets and their physical location are 5=
detailed below:
Revenue from external customers KB 5N EEE AT A
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx T T
Hong Kong B8 810,683 412,590
Macau - S R 6,999 648,892

817,682 1,061,482

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

Segment information (Continued)

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income tax
assets and available-for-sale financial assets)

Based on country of domicile of companies holding
the assets and on physical location of the assets:

Hong Kong BB

The machinery and equipment of the Group were
owned by Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited
(“SWBP”) and Sam Woo Engineering Equipment
Limited (“SWEE”), the country of domicile of both is
Hong Kong.

Revenue derived from major customers:
There were two (2016: three) customers which

individually contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017. The

revenue from each of these customers amounted
to HK$401,107,000 and HK$390,856,000,
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: HK$638,055,000, HK$156,015,000 and
HK$154,449,000).

e MR

5 WARZIBES(E)

(a)

D EREFL (&)

HnBEE (T ERFELAT
HWEERARLESHEE)

REFBZFEEN AR M
FRIEBR R EEERMELE :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER TAET
634,292 608,183

ANEE B B K 5% BB = AN
EERAR ([=ZFE]) k=
Mg B R AR (T =F])
HE - MxmE AR AR
REBEE -

KEEXEREFPHRA :

H E=2017F3A31H It &F
B WA (2016F : =8) &
FPRASENKAERBB
10% - REZERFPFEEN
W ARE Z=201743 8318
IFF & 5 5l A401,107,000
% It & 390,856,000 JT
(20164 : 638,055,000
JC + 156,015,000 7T &
154,449,000/ 7T) °

#‘.- -‘n
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6 OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME, NET

Loss on disposal of plant
and equipment
Write-off of plant and equipment
Government grant
Recovery from insurance claim

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Others

120

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment

Operating lease rental in respect of

— office and storage premises

— directors’ quarters (note 29(a))

Professional fees
Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges

Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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6 Hitt(FB\) K- FHE

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FEx FE T
S R R R Ea
(19) (496)
it S5 4 Ak B2 5% A (1,101) (652)
5T 48 B 214 477
RERREWRE/N S E - 1,681
(906) 1,010
7 BRHEBEISHNEX
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE T FHTT
$HE AR
EEAS KA (K@)
638,093 811,994
e
—BE#WREE 22,040 26,524
— T EBW R 2,715 5,572
HERRE 1,107 818
HAp 8,502 6,562
672,457 851,470
TR
BIRAN(BIEEEHS)
(FfF 5E (o)) 14,055 15,672
% 2D B 1,507 1,551
e
—BERMEERE 513 435
LNTRENEEHERS
—-MRERREYE 8,334 5,253
—EE=ES (M:F29@) 2,167 2,167
BXEH 10,518 1,442
B 2,262 1,735
RITFI S 961 629
H Aty 5,134 7,771
45,451 36,655
SHEKARITRFAST B
717,908 888,125
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EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)
notes:

(a)  Construction contract costs included but are not limited
to costs of construction materials, staff costs (refer to
note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts and consumables,
subcontracting charges and transportation.

Wages and salaries Iﬁ &k

Pension costs — defined RINSREA— EFEMHE
contribution plans (note) (Bt 5E)

Employment benefits EE @A

Less: amount included in construction & : 57t A EEA AR AN Bk
contracts costs or capitalised EREIRENceHE

in work-in-progress

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong
Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ gross earnings with a
ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee social security
plan (the “Social Security Plan”) and contributes a fixed
amount for each employee as required by the regulations
in Macau.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

e MR

BRUEEE SR (E)

() BESHNABRETRNELSE
MERA - BIRA (2R TX
fiaE()) - ERER - THEHE
Em 2BEERREHER -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
120,939 167,701
3,924 3,203
1,046 2,183
125,909 173,087
(111,854) (157,415)
14,055 15,672

AEBBBEEBCRHMEARS
EEBY 2 BN R ERTES
&l ([REEEE ) - BIZEE
@—@umm% AR EEREE
BAE BKREBBIKRAKS%M
%ﬁ% FTEIEL 3R - & A LR
A1,500/8 TC °

AEETFRRFVERRERETS
ERE2REREHSRES (1L
SREFE)  XEHEESRE

13’)\“

AEEBRESFTREERE
AEmE—FERRES @S
1E AR TE ISR o

=MEEREEFRLT
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7

EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7

notes: (Continued)

(©

Five highest paid individuals (c)

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the five individuals
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group include
three directors (2016: three) whose emoluments were
reflected in the analysis presented in note 29(a). The
emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals (2016:

BEHMEEsNMX(E)

Kz (&)

haseRHFAL

HE2017FE3ASIBILEE » &
SEREAERHFALTORIBE=S
% (2016F : =R)EE - HFEN
BN & M sE29@M D AT 271 -
MEERRE (20165 : &) AL

two) are as follows: THRMERT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHBT
Salaries, other allowances and e HMZBEREWRET
benefits in kind 2,376 3,316
Bonus TE4T 182 248
Pension costs — defined RIREKA — EREHRETE
contribution plans 38 107
122 2,596 3,671
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the ZEATHHEN FATEE :
following bands:
Number of individuals
AH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Less than HK$1,500,000 1,500,000/ 7T LA~ 2 =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/% 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007% 7T - 1
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the AEEBERNTNESK AR
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an BEHATZMEAMBMESIERIA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ZN£5 B ok i A AR £ (B B ) B2 B ok
compensation for the loss of office. BRE A
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
S0 o 4 Ty | L ¢
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FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 8 HEBRARRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Finance income I ON
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITIFE KA F) B U A 2,677 2,816
Finance costs M ER
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITERFERAXZ (6,173) (7,153)
— Interest expense on obligations - MEHESENFERE
under finance leases (3,852) (4,087)
— Interest expense on amount — B —REZSHIENT B
due to a director (note 26(b)) Xz (M 5E26(b)) (305) (434)
(10,330) (11,674)
Finance costs, net BB ER-FE (7,653) (8,858)

123
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Hong Kong profits tax
Current income tax

Under/(over)-provision of current

income tax in prior year
Deferred income tax (note 19)

Macau profits tax
Current income tax
Under-provision of current
income tax in prior year

BFAENEH
BIER P 15 7%
EFHMEHNEE
TR/ (BEEE)
EEFTEM (HFE19)

RF P15 TR
BIER P 15 7%
EFREREH A

BT

Hong Kong profits tax and Macau complementary tax
have been provided at the rate of 16.5% and 12%,
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the

year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: same).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

T 5

N oree :.'.";'-.:._ ¥ ' ,.
Jiwﬁi‘ahﬂ-

FrEHip X
RiFEE2ERERIENAEES
g
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
3,054 8,070
25 (63)
8,885 2,066
- 2,559
271 -
12,235 12,632

HZE2017F3A31BILFEE - ER
T FERE R D Al1Z16.5% &% 12%
MEFRBEBFINECHREBRMFMEH
TR B (20164 : FHE) °
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e M HRAR MR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9 FiBHEX#E)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs R [ Bk BT 1S B2 Al @ A1 AY A7 58 B BR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax AEBRMRATENERBHENE=E
rate of Hong Kong as follows: m
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax BR B 15 554 A0 4 7 91,215 165,509
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% #£16.5% M T R E m Fi1E 15,050 27,309
Tax effects of: AT IEMHIEEE
Tax rates of overseas operation N SE TS B 86 (2,199
Income not subject to tax BRI A (3,618) (19,634)
Expenses not deductible for A A X
tax purposes 6 7,271
Tax losses for which no deferred W EERELESHEEDN
income tax asset was recognised FHIEEE 455 2
Under/(over)-provision of income EFBHRNEETR
tax in prior year (EBEERE ) 296 (63) 125
Tax concessions FRIER & (40) (54)
Income tax expense FSHiF X 12,235 12,632

=MEEREEFRLT
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10 DIVIDENDS 10 KE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F&TT
Interim dividend of HKO0.5 cents B EIR RIE TR H RS
(2016: HK5 cents) per ordinary % L@ AR0.58 1l
share declared and paid (note (a)) (20164 : 578l
(M 5E(a)) 8,400 21,000
Final dividend of HK1.0 cent N EA AR B AR AR .07 Il
(2016: 1.75 HK cents) per (20164 : 1.75/ 1)
ordinary share (note (b)) (Bt 5£(0)) 16,800 29,400
25,200 50,400
notes: Hia -
(a8  On 29 November 2016, the Board resolved to declare an (a) 201611 H29H  E= &5

ARAFEERPHRETR
0.5l (20164 : 5781l) °

interim dividend of HKO0.5 cents per shares for the year
(2016: HK 5 cents).

126 () A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March by REERRAFARZLiEHE
2017 of 1.0 HK cent (2016: 1.75 HK cents) per share, F2017F3A3IBHLLEEEZ
amounting to a total dividend of HK$16,800,000 (2016: KRB & R1.0%8 1L (2016
HK$29,400,000), will be proposed at the forthcoming F1.7581M) A EHBRBE B
annual general meeting. %616,800,000/% 7T (20164 :
29,400,000 7T) °
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

. - :‘.. : )

By ;i. | 4 L 3% £ *ig@.ez DS P R B SR e R -



11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

(a)

—E-tFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basic (@)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the respective years.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used for such purpose has been retrospectively
adjusted to reflect the share subdivision with effect
from 23 December 2015.

ARBERFEA
e M (TR )

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company
(HK$’000)

Weighted average number of STEEREARRF AN EBRK

ordinary shares for the purpose s FEEE (FR)

of calculating basic earnings

per share (thousands)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RZEARZ R &)
Diluted ()
Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount

as the basic earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at the

year end (2016: same).

e MR

BRAER

E- N

BRERBFTIRBEARAE
@B AR %R IRk LAE R 4
BB 1T E @R i T HEt
o ARFTE L BRAINET
HHE ARB2015F12 723
HEERHROIFAMIEDE
W o

2017 2016
78,980 152,877
1,680,000 1,656,612
4.70 9.23

g

SRS BN REREARF
R (20164 < 48A) - M Ty
HOE R A 4 K 1T (8 B AE
A o

s 417
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12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 KHB AR
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March T AR2017E3A831B B B A
2017: T8
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest  Principal activities and

Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation
g 0 A 3L 3t B ERTRAEKRE FEERESR TEEBREENY

2017 2016

Directly held by the Company:

HAAFEEREE:
Sam Woo Group Limited British Virgin Islands  US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRENHES 10,000% 7T RE R
Capital Plus Group Limited British Virgin Islands  US$2 100% - Investment holding
RRENHES 2ETT RE R
Indirectly held by the Company:
128 mAAAMERE
Sam Woo Bore Pile Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
Foundation Limited services in Hong Kong
ZHERRAR BE 10,000,0007% 7 RESETHEIRR
R AL B AR
Sam Woo Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Trading of and leasing of
Engineering Limited machinery and equipment in
Hong Kong
—MERERER A BE 100,000/ 7T REBEERMEHMNEE

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

g
3

1

v

F

¢,

p

Y \ - s
-5 AR i




—E-tFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 KEBAF (&)
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March AR AR2017F3A31H KWK B AF
2017: (Continued) AIRE : (&)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest  Principal activities and
Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation
£ 2 3L 3t B ERTRARKRE FRERESR TEXBREELH
2017 2016

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):
HAAREERE : (B)

Sam Woo Engineering Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery and
Equipment Limited equipment in Hong Kong
=MERERRA B 500,000/ 7 REBBERM R A G
Sam Woo Foundation Limited Macau MOP30,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Macau
Sam Woott 2 5 B2 7] i1y $P9%30,000 REFETHETIRR 129
R0 B R
Sam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong
—MBEBRRA B 10,0007 70 REBETHETRR
RO B R
Sam Woo Civil Contractors Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited
SMIATIRERAA A 10,000 7T TEZX
Sam Woo Civil Works Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Inactive
EMEARERRF B8 28T R

s 417
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 KMIBAR (&)
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March AT AR2017F3A31H BB A
2017: (Continued) BB E ()
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest  Principal activities and
Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation
AR 2 1 A 3L 3t B ERTRARKRE FRERER FTEERREELY
2017 2016

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):
HAAREELES ()

Sam Woo Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong

SHmETIRERAR B 28T REBETHETIRER
A B R

Sam Woo Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of financial services to

130 group companies
=HHBERAR B8 28T MES NG A= 8
Sam Woo Offshore Engineering Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
“HEFIRBRAR BA BT TEER
Sam Woo Asia Development Group ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100%  Inactive

Limited (formerly known as SW
AA Construction Group Limited)

SHNTHEREEARAR BE BT TEXG
(MB=MEMNEEEBBERAR)

Sam Woo Foundation Group Limited  Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100%  Inactive

M EEEERRE BA 1L TER

Redland Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 % 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong

PR EEBRRAR Bk 28T REBETHEIRR
UK BR

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 MWW KRE
Machinery
and Furniture Motor
equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
BRERE GHAREE RE @t
HK$’000 HK$:000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEL FTAL FEL AT
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3A31H
Cost B 2R 661,409 1,629 8,409 671,447
Accumulated depreciation it E (154,802) (1,207) (6,193) (162,202)
Net book amount REFE 506,607 422 2,216 509,245
Year ended 31 March 2016 HZ2016F3A31B L FE
Opening net book amount EREFE 506,607 422 2,216 509,245
Additions RE 129,491 102 757 130,350
Write-off i (652) - - (652)
Disposals HeE (846) - = (846)
Depreciation e (31,748) (140) (643) (32,531)
Closing net book amount FIRERFE 602,852 384 2,330 605,566
131
At 31 March 2016 2016535318
Cost A 787,926 1,663 9,010 798,599
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (185,074) (1,279) (6,680) (193,033)
Net book amount REFE 602,852 384 2,330 605,566
Year ended 31 March 2017 B ZE201743A31HIEFE
Opening net book amount FNHREFE 602,852 384 2,330 605,566
Additions RE 53,178 133 1,066 54,377
Written-off isH (1,101) - - (1,101)
Disposals HE - - (47) (47)
Depreciation nE (24,311) (155) (802) (25,268)
Closing net book amount FREEMFE 630,618 362 2,547 633,527
At 31 March 2017 2017938318
Cost B 836,934 1,796 8,776 847,506
Accumulated depreciation e (206,316) (1,434) (6,229) (213,979)
Net book amount RHFE 630,618 362 2,547 633,527
SHREEEARAR
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13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 #WWMREE(E)
(@) The net book amount of plant and equipment held (a) REBRELEERTEEOEW
under finance lease obligations comprises (note FERENERRFELE (M
22(e)): 22(e)) :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT &L
Cost — Capitalised finance leases RA-B#TERK
MEMRS 130,964 221,989
Accumulated depreciation REIE (7,164) (11,943)
Net book amount BREF(E 123,800 210,046
(o) As at 31 March 2017, plant and equipment (b) M2017F3H318 ' €% A
amounting to HK$123,233,000 (2016: 123,233,000/ T (20164F :
HK$138,768,000) were secured for the Group’s 138,768,000/ 7T ) Bk K2 7%
bank borrowings (note 22(f)(iii)). HRIEAREBERITE A K H#
(Bt FE22(f)(iii)) °
138
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
. e 5 |
b, W e Wy L
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e MR

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 THEEEHMEE
HK$'000 °
T T
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 M2016FE3HA31HA K
20164 81H =
Additions NE 19,750
At 31 March 2017 M201753A31H 19,750
Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity A ESREEARNBBZIEL
securities in Hong Kong. MR EF o
On 29 March 2017, the Group acquired 5% of issued MR2017FE3 8298 @ K& B W BE
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited (“Gold Gold Champion Enterprises Limited
Champion”). The acquisition is accounted for as (I Gold Champion J) B # 77 J& A<
available-for-sale financial assets (note 26(b)(iv)). Gold 5% WEEA R HHESmEE (I
Champion is principally engaged in investment properties #F26(b)(iv) ) A BR ° Gold Champion
holding. TEREREVERER -
None of the financial assets is impaired. MESRHEELRAE - 133
The management considered the fair value of the unlisted EEERA ELMEHFZATE
securities approximated 5% of the net of the identifiable WU EE AT BRI & E R TR E S
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, which mainly B2 FEES% ' EEREREMEL
represented the fair values of its investment properties. AREE ZEREMEMRES
These investment properties which are situated in Hong Th & E B B 48 R AR L B ) 2 2 FX
Kong are valued by an independent valuer with reference RERZABLGEMEITHE -
to transactions in the market with properties in similar
classes and locations.
The fair values of available-for-sale financial assets are At ESmEEZ A TEEBRA
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see note 3.3). TEERZFE=HK(EKH:3.3) o

=NEZEREEARLT
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15 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

15 ERESHRERRES  UKIR
& FEANREREMMERTIE

RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade receivables & W E 5K IE 105,331 203,833
Retention receivables ERRE & 52,119 92,121
Trade and retention receivables EWE S HERRE® 157,450 295,954
Deposits, prepayments and other e BHIEREAM
receivables (note) FE U kI8 (Bt aE) 6,991 3,209
Less: non-current portion B - FEENEREE o (765) (2,617)
Current portion BN ER =B 6,226 592
note: The balance mainly represents rental deposit, prepayment Wit mEBnEx2aMHeRe 528
for sub-contractor fee, prepayment for plant and BIENRIE MM kERENTE
134 equipment and other miscellaneous prepayments. IR DA R E A R TB TR 5 ©
The credit period granted to trade customers other than REWRBERIN BHEFER4LS
for retention receivables was within 45 days. The terms AAAMEED - REIREB WK
and conditions in relation to the release of retention HAEEHAESEHAMBRTR -
vary from contract to contract, which may be subject AREERFERET BREETHSK
to practical completion, the expiry of the defect liability FEAENEMHBEERE T SRBEER -
period or a pre-agreed time period. The Group does not AEEWEFEEMAERRIELE
hold any collateral as security. o
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on EWE SR BEREEZERBELRN
invoice date was as follows: RE DT :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
1 to 30 days == EE] 59,606 147,822
31 to 60 days 31260H 45,725 56,011
Total st 105,331 203,833
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
3 e e e " ; , : -
w10 ESaT SRIN TNER G gy e e TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention receivables
were classified as current assets. The ageing of the
retention receivables based on invoice date was as
follows:

Within 1 year —FK
Between 1 and 5 years —Z5asE
More than 5 years iR F

As at 31 March 2017, retention receivables included
a balance of HK$10,134,000 with a customer. On 13
February 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has filed a
civil procedure in Macau court against this customer to
recover the retention receivables. The litigation is still in
progress as at 31 March 2017. Taking into consideration
the advice from its legal representative, the directors
consider that the Group is fully entitled to payment to
cover at least the balance on book.

As at 31 March 2017, there were no trade and retention
receivables which were past due (2016: Nil).

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$
MOP

BT
R P

As at 31 March 2017, there was no impairment in trade,
retention or other receivables (2016: Nil).

e MR

15 EWESRERRES  URIRE 4
€ BEAREREMERKEL]
(#%&) :

REAREERBRA  BKRRE S
DERRBEE - BRIRRESRIE

EEHBOREROT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
10,058 52,189
41,221 39,485
840 447
52,119 92,121

R2017F3 8318 BFWREB L&
&8 — % 2 B /) 4 210,134,000
JC ° 20174 2H138 » AR & M
B A R it = P Uk B B R IR B8 &
MBRFERIREREBEAZRER - B
201743A318 * Z FADIEET
R oQERHEERENER £
ERE AKEEERESELT
R EFT RGBT IR o

135

MR2017F3H31H  WEZ B EH
JEWE S HIERRE £ (20165 :
) o

BRESFELRRECHREESR
HAFERE - WATINEEE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FTAT
125,651 219,792
31,799 76,162
157,450 295,954

R2017F3A831H EWE H « R
B b fE R IB I EIR(E (2016
F ) o
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16 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS 16 HEEREHNIRE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Contract costs incurred plus BEZBIEANE LKA

attributable profits less D0 E 18 3 B R AT TE BB 18
foreseeable losses to date 1,169,814 1,148,288
Progress billings to date HEZBR#EERN R (1,233,907)  (1,148,398)
(64,093) (110)

Included in current assets/(liabilities) AARBEE, (BRFE)W

are the following: RREMAT

Due from customers for contract work EWREF &L T2 % 18,614 28,562
Due to customers for contract work ERNEFEHNIIESRE (82,707) (28,672)
(64,093) (110)
136 As at 31 March 2017, amounts due from customers MR2017F3A31H BB F A4
for contract work included a balance of HK$9,374,000 TIRESHEAE " REFHAXE
(2016: HK$9,374,000) not yet certified by a customer. B 4 #29,374,0007% 7T (20164 -
On 14 November 2013, a subsidiary of the Company 9,374,000% 7T) ° M20135%11H14
served a notice of arbitration to this customer to settle H AAGAMBARIMZEE S
the dispute on the final payment of the contract. The HREEA - EUBABHEE R
arbitration is still in progress as at 31 March 2017. Taking B FWALD o 3P E 201743 A
into consideration the advice from its legal representative, SIBMEITH - £EREEER
the directors consider that the Group is fully entitled to THNER EEREASEBERRE
payment to cover at least the balance on book. ERSELIRERMEATERT

SEL

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

RN . =<8
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16 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS (Continued) 16 HEZANIR(E)
In connection with the listing of the Company on the Main 201498250 * AR TR EFS
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a BHMERXZMBER A ER EME
deed of indemnity (the “Deed of Indemnity”) was signed A HhimERE ((REZEK]) &
on 25 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr. Lau Chun 1 /NI == e S s e N
Ming, a director of the Company, irrecoverably and (EPNE:: oz (o PN S = g
unconditionally undertakes to pay up the entire sum or [/ B8 2% 189,374,000% 7T + 1545 e
the shortfall, if any, on demand by the Group if the Group AEBER2HEINEESTRE
fails to recover such amount of HK$9,374,000. w(AH) -
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 RERBSEEY
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Cash at bank RITIH S 347,899 183,010
Cash on hand FEES 44 50
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIREEEYD 347,943 183,060
137
Restricted bank balances 2[R FIER 1T 4 54 20,864 20,559
Short-term bank deposits EERIT IR X - 17,797
Maximum exposure to credit risk FrA &= 1EE =R 368,763 221,366
note: As at 31 March 2017, the restricted bank balance Mt - RR2017E3 8318 » R &l 58
represents a deposit of HK$20,864,000 (2016: 1T % 82 X £20,864,000/8 Tt
HK$20,559,000) placed by a director (note 21). (20164 : 20,559,000 7t )
H—ZE=HFEANES (K=
21) o

#‘.- -‘n
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 17 RERREZEY(E)
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the HEEREeRERME  BHe kR
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows: cEEBMBEFBEUATNZSE:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T T
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEEY 347,943 183,060
Bank overdraft (note 22) RITE X (HizE22) - (©)
347,943 183,057
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, ReEFREEEY ZBHRTE
restricted bank balances and short-term bank deposit BRAREHRITFRNEREENLT
were denominated in the following currencies: 5| E ¥ EHE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T T
138
HK$ BT 352,885 166,663
MOP Lk 15,418 54,708
Others Hih 504 45
368,807 221,416
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
: A \ § I , |
Tl PEs > W =0 % e L ol R ) 1 i © g Y e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES

(a)

Share capital

Ordinary Shares, authorised:
At 1 April 2015
Effect of shares subdivision (note ii)

At 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016
and 31 March 2017

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2015
Shares issued under the placing (note i)
Effect of shares subdivision (note ii)

At 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016 and
31 March 2017

notes:

(a)

LEERGEE)
2015F4 A1 H
RAFAR 2L (F5)

R201643A318 ~ 2016F4 18 &
2017E3A318

LER(BRTRAR) :
R2015F4A1R
REREEETRA ()
FR A 9 40 0 228 (I i)

12016937310 - 2016F4A1A K
201743A31R

(i) On 17 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued
20,000,000 shares by way of placing at HK$3.01
each. Proceeds of approximately HK$60,200,000
were received and the related transaction costs
of approximately HK$1,806,000 were netted off
with the proceeds. These shares rank pari passu

in all respect with the then existing shares in issue.

The excess over the par value of the shares were

credited to the share premium account.

(i) With effective from 23 December 2015, each
share of the Company of HK$0.01 per share was
subdivided into 4 shares of HK$0.0025 per share.
The number of share capital increased accordingly.

Share capital is therefore presented on a post share

subdivision basis.

B~ RADBEREE

e MR

fi& 7
Number of
shares HK$
RHEE BT

1,000,000,000 10,000,000
3,000,000,000 =
4,000,000,000 10,000,000
400,000,000 4,000,000
20,000,000 200,000
1,260,000,000 =
1,680,000,000 4,200,000

Wiz -

() H2015F7H17H * XA
7] ABE & 7 2 3% 5 183.01
BT Z EREERET
20,000,0008% & 1 - B Ik
EY FT 15 5% 18 4960,200,000
BIT  MABBE R SR 4Y
1,806,000/ 7T B AL B FT 15
RIBEH - ZERNES
FEEERMNREEET
BHZEEREMA - B
B EEZE ARG
B AR o

(i) 2015912 H23H #E » A&
AEEREE 0.01ETZ
B3 To 3k 48 A4 B IR (E
0.00257% 7T 2 B 17 ° R AN
KB EMEEEN - Btz
B #7418 ELE 2 51 IR o

=NEZEREEARLT
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18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BAX - RO BEREHE(£&)
RESERVES (Continued)
(o)  Share premium and reserves o) BiEERFEE
Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
B 175 E Hittfi e REEF ft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THEL THER
At 31 March 2015 1201563 A31H 135,893 10,500 377,387 523,780
Profit for the year REZ RN - - 152,877 152,877
Issuance of placement shares FATRLE B D (M EE18(2)()
(note 18(a)(i) 58,194 L = 58,194
Final dividends relating to the year BEREZE2015F3H31H
ended 31 March 2015 IEFENRAKE = = (63,000) (63,000)
Interim dividend relating to the year ~ BEE 2201634318
ended 31 March 2016 EFENFRHRE = = (21,000) (21,000)
At 31 March 2016 72016%3A31H 194,087 10,500 446,264 650,851
Profit for the year AEEEF - - 78,980 78,980
Final dividends relating to the year BHEZ2016F3A31H
ended 31 March 2016 IEFENRBRE - - (29,400) (29,400)
Interim dividend relating to the year A BE E201743 4318
ended 31 March 2017 IEEEHH RS - - (8,400) (8,400)
At 31 March 2017 Wo01743A31R 194,087 10500 487,444 692,031
note: et -

—

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of the
nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and SWEE
acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of
SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant to- the
reorganisation completed in 2003.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

s A aad N T s - ¢ | -
i LRk VST Tii@.l‘f. L W = -3V i Rtk

REBHEMBEEREBEEAMN
WK BARNKRAS R Ak
BB ARAMBEITAAGRAR
BEMZERE - LWRRER2003F 578
YR B AR AT U IR ) = AN b B B2 =
MR AR AEEEN 2R A
BN B AR AN 1 31T A9 = F1(BVI)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities were as follows:

Deferred income tax asset:
Recoverable after more
than 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Payable or to be settled more
than 12 months
Payable or to be settled
within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities, net

The movement on the deferred income tax account was

as follows:

At beginning of the year
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income

(note 9)

At end of the year

e M HRAR MR

19 EEMREH

B IREEMEERBAA BT

R
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
BEEFSHEE :
R121E A & W E
917 131
EEFTSHARE
1218 B & S sk 4508
(53,453) (42,045)
R121E B R E s 4575
- (1,737)
BIEFSHAE — 58 (52,536) (43,651)
EEFTISTERE 28T ¢
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
REH] (43,651) (41,585)
REFEEEERERAER
(Ki&E 9)
(8,885) (2,066)
RF K (52,536) (43,651)
CHREEEERAT

141
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Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1 April 2015
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
Offset against deferred income
tax assets

At 31 March 2016
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
Offset against deferred income
tax assets

142

At 31 March 2017

Deferred income tax assets

At 1 April 2015
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income
Offset against deferred income tax liabilities

At 31 March 2016
Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income
Offset against deferred income tax liabilities

At 31 March 2017

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

RS e b ool
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

R2015F4 818
Rizh 2 ERERNER

HEEMEREERE
R2016E3 A31H
R a2 ERER AR

BERMSREELH

R2017%E3A31H

R2015F4A1R
Rz e 2ERERAER

BEEREHAREH

R2016E3A31H
RizE 2 ENERNER

BETHMEHAGLR

R2017%E3A31H

S OVAMR T T RISl SREN TN 8 W

BRIEFT1F
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19 EERER (&)

HAE

Accelerated

Unrealised tax
profit depreciation Total
AEREN NERERE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TER TET
- 68,200 68,200
178 12,641 14,378
(37) - (37)
1,700 80,841 82,541
- 11,372 11,372
(1,700) - (1,700)
- 92,213 92,213
BEFTEIREE
Unrealised
profit Tax losses Total
AEREF RIEEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FTHET THT
& 26,578 26,615
- 12,312 12,312
(37) - (37)
- 38,890 38,890
2,617 (130) 2,487
(1,700) - (1,700)
917 38,760 39,677
TRy W T e
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
tax jurisdiction. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet.

Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFTSTAaE
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISHREE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$5,624,000 (2016:
HK$2,129,000) that can be carried forward to offset
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no

expiry date.

19 EZEMEH (&)

BIEFFISTEE (&)

BREMEHEERBERE KA
SR ITRERN AV S R E E R
AErEHAEYEE  BREME
T ER A — R AR R AR T A
BAHE REERBRTHINEGE
(RELEEHIHEREE) AT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHT
(53,453) (48,782)
917 131
(52,536) (43,651)

firi 75 A8 BA X 7% A1) 2= A] 45 18 oK 2R FE &R
Tl A IR - BRI g AT A S RO B 18
BIEBRELEMEHEE - R2017
F3A3IH - AEEHRERRABH
TA &5 18 #95,624,0007% 7T (20164 :
2,129,0008 )  ZE B &

FA 1 35 85 R SR B AR B A
BEBTEIHA -

& ED
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AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables (note)

note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other payables
for constructing work-in-progress, wages, legal and

20 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS

& & 5 3R

ENRES

ENESFARRECHER
JE &t FRIA M B Al e A 3R

(Htet)

professional fees and transportation costs.

144 The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on
invoice date was as follows:
0 to 30 days 0£30H
31 to 60 days 31&260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
More than 365 days HiE365H
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
- ) 8w . B . |
i e’ B ; =2 4 Sy LR i N : "
i L LR (2 Av .k 3 1‘1§’§.!‘.'. L AEH i t

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 ERNESRERRES - BHRR

K H fth PEAS 5K OB

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx FHET

68,372 74,955

11,162 12,352

79,534 87,307

13,969 16,298

93,503 103,605

it ZERBIERMBEERT

BI&

CERRERBEXERHE

58 ¥ AN B JE T SRR R EL At

K

ENESFKEAREBEER B HNERR

DT :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
67,127 67,645
387 510
28 —
- 6,524
- 89
830 187
68,372 74,955

TRy W T e
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20 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS

AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The ageing of the
retention payables was as follows:

—FR
—ERF

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 5 years

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP JEPTHE
Others EA

20

e M HRAR MR

BRESHEARRES - BITFR 4
R H A FEAS FROE (F) L

RIEBEERBRA BENRER

PHEAERBDEAE ENRBESHE
BanR
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FHT
3,919 11,284
7,243 1,068
11,162 12,352

ENESHERRECHRE(ESR
BENRFEMRE LA TINEE

5HE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET BT

72,930 78,899

4,431 8,032

2,173 376

79,534 87,307
SHREEEERAT

145
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21

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose of
indemnifying the Group against any claims, challenges
and rejections from the Hong Kong tax authority and/or
Macau tax authority and costs incurred in relation to the
Group’s tax liabilities arising up to October 2014.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014 (“the
Listing Date”), the balance shall be released and returned
to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh anniversary of the
Listing Date.

The balance, together with all bank interest accrued
therefrom, shall not be released and returned to the
director until and after all claims, if any, related to the
above have been concluded and fully settled and/or time-
barred in both Hong Kong and Macau.

The balance of amount due to a director is secured
by restricted bank balances of HK$20,864,000 (2016:
HK$20,559,000) and interest bearing at effective interest
rate of 1.47% (2016: 2.13%).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

, 't

¥ : ~f3h, b 1
"i w%*iLw_ |,

-

21

BN —2EERE

BIEBERZE  ARARESEZIKHA
EETAIMEFEE  RBEAER
WA BB R, 2OR P B 5 5P
FIlR AR AR BRKREKED -
AR REBAE E2014F10BELEN
MBBEHBNKAE  MAEER
T #R17 Bk P 77 A 17 320,000,000
o

MRBROERARREREEZA
(BN2014F10A168 (T EHHH]))
BtERN - RPIBBEDBPAREER
HEHMESAEEREABRE
MEBERAIBRBERRETESREL
BAFEBENRRE TFEIRASLAE

FRERE [F) H A RO FT A R 1T A B
BEEMAABALENRR (WE)R
BERRMFETERTEMBER,
HEBAF AR RIE - 7 A R R
BTES-

FEfE EHIE 2 &R B X R &R
17 #5 #220,864,0007 7T (20164 :
20,559,000/ 7t ) Hif « Wiz BHRFI
%A1.47% (2016%F : 2.13%) 5F & °

e .,,a‘,.-..'a‘s:;m - T
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22 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 22 RITEIREX
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Non-current SEME
Obligations under finance leases Eﬂ;ﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬁiﬁﬁ 26,259 66,713
Long-term bank loans RHERITER 26,861 54,160
53,120 120,873
Current mE
Bank overdraft RITEX - 3
Short-term bank loans RERITER 136,933 35,660
Current portion of long-term E’\ $ A EIEEE M R AR IR
bank loans due for repayment B 7 Ay BN HA 26
within one year 36,735 72,778
Long-term bank loans due after A R ZSREZBRIRN
one year which contain repayment —FRFHBEZEN KRR
on demand clause TER - 13,930
Obligations under finance leases due R—FAREHEENRER 147
for repayment within one year 51T 24,953 45,073
198,621 167,444
Total borrowings BB T8 251,741 288,317

=MEEREEFRLT

4 Tl FE L & Tt

. ? ‘ ; of: ,'_?y' "*ﬂ" !
r ~1) 1 r ,— ,’l._ [ g ‘A
VING 2P 3 - AR
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22 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 22 WB|ITEZXIRER(Z)
(Continued)
(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows: () BRI BRAOT
() Bank overdraft and bank loans () RITEZRRITEHX
In the consolidated balance sheet, certain NEEBEEBBRAN &
bank loans due for repayment after one year B AT B s 2R (EE G
which contain repayment on demand clause —FRE B BEENSE TR
were classified as current liabilities. TERDBERRBAME -
Based on the scheduled repayment terms set RIBEZR P EMmTEE
out in the loan agreements and ignoring the BHE - URAEREM
effect of any repayment on demand clause, B AREST A0
the maturity of bank overdraft and bank loans 2 RITEXRRITEXK
would be as follows: H B EAIE R
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx T T
148 BB R BB HRTT
Bank overdraft on demand 5ia - 3
Within 1 year — &K 173,668 108,438
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE 19,535 44,521
Between 2 and 5 years == mAE 7,326 23,569
200,529 176,531
(i) Obligations under finance leases (i) BEHEEF
The maturity of obligations under finance lease BEREEENEIBER
would be as follows: AT
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T T
Within 1 year — &K 24,953 45,073
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE 17,140 38,606
Between 2 and 5 years s 9,119 28,107
5 51,212 111,786

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

- e ¥ - - = | |
- + o ; L 4 I6A &g W poni bt 4 : u ; 4 pef. - P
% ART VENS T T LSO SRIN TR gy e e TR
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22 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows:
(Continued)

(ifi)

The obligations under finance leases are as

follows:

Gross finance leases

— minimum lease payments
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

Future finance charges on
finance lease

Present value of obligations
under finance leases

MEMERE

—REBEEMRK

—FR
—EMF
=ZF s

REMBERE M

MEHEREENRE

(b)  The weighted average interest rates were as follows:

Short-term bank loans

Long-term bank loans

Obligations under finance leases

Bank overdraft

FEEIIRTTE R
RHISRITER
BMEHEEEE
RITEX

e M HRAR MR

RITEXZRMER(E)

ERNBHEROT : (&)

(i) BEHERTEILT -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
26,396 48,499
17,797 40,408
9,297 28,953
53,490 117,860
(2,278) (6,074)
51,212 111,786
MiEFHFEMT -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THETT
2.4% 2.4%
3.8% 3.8%
3.7% 3.8%
N/A 2.4%

ZHEZEE@MERD R

A 4
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22 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank overdraft
and borrowings were denominated in the following

currencies:
HK$ B TT
Euro B

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The fair values are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 March 2017, the finance leases are
secured by certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of HK$123,800,000 (2016:
HK$210,046,000) of certain subsidiaries and
guarantees provided by the Company.

The Group’s banking facilities and obligations under
finance leases are subject to annual review and the
utilised facilities are secured or guaranteed by:

Secured

ki
i

Unsecured

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

o

e & -'r-*;.'.";,-,:._ y . I. :
i | ‘J (2 Av .k 3 Tii@.l‘f. L W = -3V

i

22 RITEXIRMER(E)

(c)

AREBRITEX REFRNRE
BATIIEREHE :

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TER TET
194,808 262,657
56,933 25,660
251,741 288,317

HRMEEERN  NEEH
fERREEEE A FERE -
NP EBRAFEERNE =

MR2017F3 8318 &M
ENETHBARKEEER
123,800,000/ 7T (20164 :
210,046,000 7T ) HY & T # 4k

RIBEER R BARRARME
BR-

ARBNRTEERRAESE
AESEYRETEN A
8P B AT AR (EE 5L
BR -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
105,358 179,868
146,383 108,449
251,741 288,317
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22 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

()

The Group’s banking facilities and obligations under

finance leases are subject to annual review and the

utilised facilities are secured or guaranteed by:
(Continued)

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

corporate guarantees jointly granted by
certain subsidiaries to the extent of Nil (2016:
HK$99,055,000) as at 31 March 2017;

an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017 (2016:
same);

certain plant and equipment of the Group as
detailed in notes 13(a) and (b);

an assignment of receivable over the proceeds
of a construction project as at 31 March 2016
which had been released during the year
ended 31 March 2017;

indemnities from subsidiaries for the issuance
of guarantees or performance bonds of the
Company as at 31 March 2017 (2016: same);

The Group did not breach any financial bank
covenant during the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: none).

22 RITEIRMER(E)

AEENRITEELBRERE
AESFORETER  HC
PREEHRATSEFEERL
R (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

M2017F3H31H - A&
THEB QG ERIEER
AT BT (2016%F :
99,055,000/ 7T) H A &)
R

MR2017%3 8318 * &
TFHI B A AR ER R
(R (20164 : #8R) :

AEEZE TN ERE
(R FI5E13(a) R (b)) :

M2016F3H31H » £
18 B BT 15 I8 B FE R
1H - HEREZE201743
A318 IEF E B

R2017E3A31H - i B
RNAEFEAR R E AT AR
TR B A IRTE VE L H R (E
{#7& (20164 : $8[A))

H E2017F3A31H IEFE -
AEBWEERTMSREIT
E (20164 : &) -

#‘.- -‘n
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23 COMMITMENTS 23 E¥E
(a) Capital commitments (@) BEAREYE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the REREBFNERAREENE
year but not yet incurred is as follows: AREZWOT :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FH&T
Plant and equipment WA N 2% A - 3,511
(o) Operating lease commitments — as lessee (b) KEREAE—EREHEA
The future aggregate minimum lease rental RIBET A A & S st 1E A
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office and B BTEREEMEUR
storage premises, and quarters for workers and BT REFETHARKKER
directors under non-cancellable operating leases are SHRYBEAERATHBERAXZ
as follows: i
152 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
No later than 1 year NERTF 6,932 4,012
Later than 1 year and no later BER—FEBTERASE
than 5 years 1,805 2,771
8,737 6,783
(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor () REHEAE-—EREMEA
As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any M201743A318 - AEBE W
operating lease commitments as a lessor (2016: Nil). EmUAHBAAF R B EAEE

HE AN (20165F : &) o

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

. - :‘.. : )
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24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

25

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000 and
HK$16,500,000, respectively, in respect of two
construction contracts of the Group in its ordinary course
of business (2016: same). The performance bonds are
expected to be released in accordance with the terms of

the respective construction contracts.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25

CASH FLOWS

(a)

e MR

24 HREE

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (@

cash generated from operations:

Profit before income tax
Depreciation of plant

and equipment
Loss on disposal of plant

and equipment
Write-off of plant and equipment
Finance income
Finance costs

Changes in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in trade
and retention receivables

(Increase)/decrease in deposits,
prepayments and other
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts
due from customers for
contract work

(Decrease)/increase in trade and
retention payables

Decrease in accruals and
other payables

Increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work

Net cash generated from
operations

BR P 15 7% A1 g 7
MmN R BT E

S R R AR B

WEH A N R
B H A
MBER

LEELE

FEWE 5 A MRS &
wW, ()

Be  ANRIEREMWER
RIE () E A

EUEFANTREE
Wb,/ ()
BHESHERRES
GR>) /8 m

BT 3B R R A A 30
D

BNEF& &I FRIEM

RETHMERSFERE

o)

REREBRMEE

BR P15 B B st 1) S A & 5 P

BRI FREAEER

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
91,215 165,509
25,268 32,531
19 496

1,101 652
(2,677) (2,816)
10,330 11,674
125,256 208,046
138,504 (93,587)
(4,411) 2,609
9,948 (1,508)
(7,773) 50,371
(2,329) (288)
54,035 21,838
313,230 187,481

R2017E3 8318 « A& B 3t 4 1 Ll
AEBEHEEREERNAMIARSE
EHNHNBEARKIELER? A
17,751,000/ 7T & 16,500,000/ 7T
(20164 : #H[R) - ZE R AR KTE
ST IRIE S EES N IR -
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25 HZMEBRERERME(E)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, b) REcHsRERD HEK
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment WMERENRERBERLE -
comprise:

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Net book amount (note 13) BREDFE (M1 5E13) 47 846
Loss on disposal of plant and o & KRR B R B 1R
equipment (note 6) (Fffz¥6) (19) (496)
Non-cash proceeds from RIHE TH R
exchange of certain plant IR & FT1SRIE
and equipment (note 25(c)) (FF7E25(c)) - (350)
Cash proceeds from sales HERMERENRS
of plant and equipment Fri8 5k 28 -
154 (c) Non-cash transactions ) ¥REeRH
During the year ended 31 March 2017, (i) finance RE E£2017F3A31H It &
lease arrangement was entered into by the Group & - ()4 & B 5t B8 294,000
for acquisition of plant and equipment amounting 7B 70 (20164F : 74,843,000/
to HK$294,000 (2016: HK$74,843,000); and (ii) JC) B M AR N SR S ] S b & A
plant and equipment amounting to Nil (2016: B8 R(iNZE T (20164F :
HK$1,080,000) was acquired through exchange of 1,080,000/ 7T ) B 1 4 K2 5% &
certain plant and equipment at a carrying amount of Ty 3% 38 32 #2 B8R T {8 A&846,000
HK$846,000 with an additional cash consideration BT A T e G 588 DA K 5E
of HK$730,000. 5NER & X {B730,000/% 7T M1 Ue
i o

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

- e § B 2 . £ |
TR, A= 4 o e p ke
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be

26

e MR

BBALRS

FAEE A LIER BN
W&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ@T%ﬁ&éﬁ
TEEINALTEERZENN
AL BAESZFHEEESERE
& 77 1 R] 8 [0 R Y L B S HE R Y A
T AMAEHRRETNENTY

EREEMRSENOAL - XHAF

3£ 1 ) R

related if they are subject to common control or joint

control. Related parties may be individuals or other
entities.
(@) The directors of the Company are of the view that

the following companies were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party
ABALTER

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
214 B 5 A4
Cheer Crown Limited

EBHERAF

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

ENEERPEGR QA

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited

ERERERBER AT

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RABEBRRAA
Healthy World Investment Limited

BEREBRAF

Long Ascent Development Limited

RAZRARAA
Sky Ease Holdings Limited
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

2 i S A P B B A L IR AR S R
BN o BB A LRI S EASEA

o

i}
i

\r
I

AKRNBESERE - NARAE
W B N 5 B 31T R 5 IR L
BESRBEE A

=

Relationship with the Group
BEASENER

Director of the Company

RARES

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERALEE2EEREENBE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HASEE TESRARGKNEZEHEB RS

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKREETESRARGEKNEZEHEB VBB LA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEBETESEREARGEKERERFHNBE QG

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

BHAEEETEE2EHENHE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

BHAGKEETEE2EMENHEEAQ T

A related company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HERALEE S EHANAB QA

=NEZEREEARLT
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

iiﬂ- tl'. -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 BEMATXS (&)

19,750

(b) Transactions b) R5
In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the BRNR A BTSSR E 28 o BT
consolidated financial statements, the following WEEI » NEEEHER AL
transactions were carried out with related parties at REFTHEOIRTETATR
terms mutually agreed by both parties: 2
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing transactions HEXS
Paid to related parties: EEBALTRE
Rental expenses to Cheer INTRHERARNHESHAZ
Crown Limited (note i) (Ft5E) 2,160 2,160
Rental expenses to East Ascent IRTFTRACEBR QAN
Enterprise Limited (note ii) e 7 x (K Ei) 46 46
Rental expenses to Cheer TR TFEFBEREEGRA RN
Profit International Enterprise < 7 & (T &Ei)
156 Limited (note ii) 46 46
Rental expenses to Long Ascent IRNTRAZEER QAN
Development Limited (note ii) & M (i) 600 600
Rental expenses to Cheer IRTEREREREBR QAR
Wealth International e (K &Ei)
Development Limited (note ii) 875 875
Rental expenses to Healthy SRR EERE B R A RA
World Investment Limited & 5 X (F i)
(note i) 600 600
Expense payable to FEfTEB A LRX
a related party:
Interest expense payable to FEfE = F) 8 5 S (BT i)
a director (note fiii) 305 434
Discontinued transaction BRIER S
Paid to a related party: BB A TRIE ¢
Acquisition of available-for-sale Uz B Sky Ease Holdings Limited
financial assets from Sky Ease Byl it S e E S E (FaEiv)
Holdings Limited (note iv) -

e £ "
e d.,i':...’g.‘..ﬁk‘",k -



—E-tFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26 BEBALRZ (E)
(b) Transactions (Continued) b)) R5(#E)
note i: Rental expenses for storage of machinery and Biati - FRETE I & 5% 5 HY
equipment are based on terms pursuant to the HeRZXTIERBBES
tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the 7 [E 1% 5 B9 8 49 H (6
relevant parties. oo
note ii: Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are based Hiitii - PRIEEEE<NHELSE
on terms pursuant to the tenancy agreements as YIHEREBRHHEE
mutually agreed by the relevant parties. BENTRALB IR -
note iii: Interest expense was payable to a director, Mr. Hiatii - NN EBRX I EMS—2
Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount due to a BEENEMENESS
director (note 26(d)). #RBA % A& (K15E26(d)) ©
note iv:On 29 March 2017, the Group has entered Kiztiv: R2017%#3H29H -
into an agreement with Sky Ease Holdings N &£ B BEHSky Ease
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Lau, Holdings Limited (£ 5%
for the acquisition of 5% of issued capital of EE2BWEZ2NA))E]
Gold Champion at a cash consideration of SRS RE
HK$19,750,000. The acquisition is accounted for 19,750,000/ jt W B&
as available-for-sale financial assets (note 14). Gold Championt #17
AR A5% o U B LA AT 4
PEemEE (f:E14)
AR
(c) Key management compensation () EEEIEAE MM 157
Key management includes directors (executive and FEERAEBREASEES
non-executive) of the Group. The compensation (1T M IE#TT) » BIE B ARTS
paid or payable to key management for employee BENZENTEEZEEREASD
services is disclosed in note 29(a). RN BY 7E29(a) 3 55 o
(d) Balance — non-trade (d #H&—FEES
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Payable to a director: Bff—REERE
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 21) 2R B8R 5 & (K7 a21) 20,864 20,559
27 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 27 BAERDT
Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings Limited, & 32 [Z 7R ASilver Bright Holdings
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is Limited (—A R R BE ZE S F M
the ultimate holding company of the Group, which is a LA R BANE BB & KIERA
company indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the Al ZARIHUAREHZ T RXH
beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So. ABNEEETHEERS -
=NEEEEERAT
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28 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY

28 AAFMEERBERRFREEZSY

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT TH&T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RKIEE 5,927 5,927
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TE{S IR 67 =
Amount due from a subsidiary NG 77,462 140,187
Income tax receivable JEUR FT 1S FR 5 =
Restricted bank balances IR Bl $R1T 45 AR 20,864 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeERIBREEEY 123,342 67,058
,,,,,,, 221,740 207,245
Total assets EE#RE 227,667 213,172
EQUITY S
158 Capital and reserve EAXREE
Share capital & A< 4,200 4,200
Reserves it (a) 202,414 208,966
Total equity BB 206,614 213,166
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities A R=Ri
Amount due to a director JENEEFHIEB 20,864 —
Accruals and other payables FE T 3R IA N H A FE
KIE 189 5
Income tax payable &1} Fr 15 % - 1
Total liabilities amesE 21,053 B £
Total equity and liabilities EakEEAE 227,667 24872
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RARIMEEBBREN2017F6 A8
Board of Directors on 23 June 2017 and were signed on 3HEEETHMAE WA TINAL
its behalf. REEE -
Lau Chun Ming 2|4 58
Director EZE
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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28 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 28 XAAFANEERBRRRZEHEED

THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
note (a): Het(a) -
Reserve movement of the Company RATNEEES
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Other retained
premium reserve earnings Total
(RetE8)/
R R E Hits %t REER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TET TET TET
At 31 March 2015 #®2015F3A4318 135,893 5,927 (23,340) 118,480
Profit for the year AEEFEF - - 116,292 116,292
Issuance of placement shares (note 18(a) /7B &M (HiFE18(a)) 58,194 - - 58,194
Final dividends relating to the year EBEZE2015F3A318
ended 31 March 2015 HFERRBRE - = (63,000) (63,000)
Interim dividend relating to the year EE#EZ20163831H
ended 31 March 2016 IEEERNFRERE = 2 (21,000) (21,000)
159
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H 194,087 5,927 8,952 208,966
Profit for the year AERHA - - 31,248 31,248
Final dividends relating to the year EBEZE2016F3831H
ended 31 March 2016 IEFERREBRE - - (29,400) (29,400)
Interim dividend relating to the year BBEZ2017F3A31H
ended 31 March 2017 IEFER R ERE - - (8,400) (8,400)
At 31 March 2017 #201743A318 194,087 5,927 2,400 202,414
Other reserve of the Company represents the difference KR B R H M s 1R BT W = F0
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over BV E E FEBIBEA AR ARE
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company EAEEMZEITRAHAENZSRE -
issued in exchange thereof.
=HEEEEERAT
91
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEEMNRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments @ =Z=E=We
The remuneration of each director of the Company WeE7FT B E 5T A B TR A
which were included in the staff costs as disclosed MAAFSESHNEES I a0
in note 7 is set out below: o

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HENMEIAMNELEE
Employer’ s
contribution
Discretionary Directors’ to pension

Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
Eim
FOSHE]

he ie REEL ESREE  FHMEX h

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

Executive directors YTES

160 Mr. Lau Chun Ming? S L - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kok’ HEE L L - 840 70 600 11 1,521
Mr. Lau Chun Ka L - 840 70 600 18 1,528
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BELT - 456 38 324 - 818

Independent non-executive  BUFHTEE

directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun,  FH#2##%
Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXm%4 240 - - - - 240
720 2,933 244 2,167 29 6,093
-~
T R —
SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
El ,_:T _;:-’, L I 1‘ ": 1 ‘. _‘ | - .
VLT . : =< 5 A i i Y
q: Q' = - Ji: : IL Y .ilLr.-' ’1&‘ i = ".a
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEFEANRERZ)
(Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ ZE=Me(#E)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ016F3A3AILER
Employer' s
contribution
Discretionary Directors’ t0 pension
Fees Salaries bonus Quarters scheme Total
EEM
EUSEE
ik e ML BERE  (FRMEX Eh

HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
TiEL TiEL TiEL TiEn TET TiEn

Executive directors #i7Es

Mr. Lau Chun Ming? AfRm A - 797 - 643 - 1,440

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok" HfRE L - 840 - 600 18 1,458

Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARREE - 840 - 600 18 1,458

Ms. Leung Lai So PEEIT - 456 - 324 - 780 161

Independent non-executive  BUFHTES

directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun,  TH#2%%

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum FERLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBRE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 - 2,167 36 5,856
# Chairman i ES
i Chief Executive Officer 3 TTIRBEL

=MEEREEFRLT
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

29 EEEMNKEREZ)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii)
received or paid emoluments in respect of services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or
(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
(2016: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2016: same).

E=Me (&)

M ERFESHERAS
BEER ABKASEET
B R A H)E E [ AN 5 B R

KRB E2017F3831H LLFE
A BEARFES)REX
B9 (7 WO ER = 2 AT AT B < (i)
REBREEARASEMBR
A AT ACHE S5 ) AR 75 W ER =X
TAERIEN 2 5 k(i) R EE A
EMET MRS (20164 : 48
@) o

EEZRNXS  THHIEHNE
W $d

Br 4R & B 7% 3R 3R BT sE26FT
BEIN  RERKEF AN EAE
M BERNRRER—FEIL
BARREEEEZNHERS
EAEEBERARRESERH
WEARS  RHERENGFE
(20164 : #HA) °

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

RN . =<8
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the end of reporting date, the final and
conclusive tax assessment and final tax demand note for
the years 2013 and 2014 were issued by the tax authority
in Macau. The Group has no outstanding amount on the
required tax for the years of assessment of 2013 and
2014 in Macau; the Macau tax assessment for the years
2013 and 2014 have been concluded, final and settled.
There is no tax liability so far demanded by Hong Kong
tax authority in respect of the transactions and income
contemplated under the Machinery Lease Agreement and
the Machinery Agency Agreement.

In June 2017, the directors (including all of the
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
resolved to partially return HK$17,000,000 out of the
deposit of HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of Indemnity
(note 21) together with all the bank interests earned up to
12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in view of the
updated tax positions mentioned above and the estimate
on maximum exposure made by the tax advisers of the
Company. The remaining HK$3,000,000 represented the
estimated remaining tax exposure of the Group.

Notwithstanding the return of the said amount (whether
in part or in full) from the Group, the controlling

shareholders irrevocably confirmed that, all their
obligations, save for deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 to
the Group, set out in the Deed of Indemnity remain valid.

e MR

30 BEEH

RIS RS  RFIHBEHBAIC S

HH2013%F K 20144F £z 48 MR TE M 7T
MERETIRBANE ASEETE
REE /B FI20134F R20144F FF
MEEHERBIE  fRF20135F
R201AF B 24t « R REL
- BEMBES T EGREREE
EkEEREREE TR S KK
AZ KB AR FIIE -

B E il SR R AR R R AR A
MEEEIEL S ERERRMGEE - R
2017F6AR ' ARRIEE (BEMA
BYEHITES) AR EBRERR
(Fff 521 ) 3B 20,000,000/% 7T 17 7K
R H) &6 4317,000,0005% JT & [ i% £
TR 2201797 A128 BT B EL &Y
— ) #R1717 X F E.1,006,0007% 7T °
# 73,000,000/ ST 6 AN & B &9 fl 5T
BT B ISR o

BEAREE D BEHEFEEU LK
T8 - P IR PR ER T AT A8 3 7 2R R (B
REMEBRENEZHBEEDAE
- M4 T AR & [ & 220,000,000
B TTE T SRR AN o
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Five Year Financial Summary

L EHBEBRE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERSIABEMBEENE FIZEEER
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as BE BBENRERBMAT -
follows.

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31HILLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$S000 HKS000

Results E FER FAT FAT FAT FHAT
Revenue WA 817,682 1,061,482 851,285 492,734 375,147
Gross Profit eS| 145,225 210,012 306,245 165,634 102,590
Profit before income tax B A5 %50 A s A 91,215 165,509 241,010 129,895 68,271
Income tax expense FriS i f 2 12,235 (12,632)  (21,842) (2,809)  (12,649)
Profit for the year FERF 78,980 152,877 219,168 127,086 55,622

As at 31 March

MR3A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
164 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHT FAT FAET FAT FAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EMENE E 654,959 608,314 513,389 403,802 315,897
Current assets mENEE 551,115 546,640 472,831 223,670 138,951
Total assets BEBE 1,206,074 1,154,954 986,220 627,472 454,848
Liabilities 8f&
Non-current liabilities EmEatE 127,437 185,214 184,453 69,652 85,481
Current liabilities mEBE 382,406 314,689 273,987 339,101 227,734
Total liabilities aEAE 500,843 499,903 458,440 408,753 313,215
Total equity A 696,231 655,051 527,780 218,719 141,633
Note: . Hiat -

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the ANEBEHEE Z2013F K2014FE3831H IEFW
two years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014 and of the assets, equity BFESFNEZRE EE K R2013%F 2014
and liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and 2014 have been extracted from F3A31HH §§ & B EREE TRk

the Prospectus. B B R ERET
The summary above does not form part of the audited financial P BN TR E X ERERA— 2B
statements. Do

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

RN . =<8
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